
 

 

 
Date of issue: 4th July, 2011  

 
  

MEETING  OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 (Councillors M S Mann (Chair), Basharat, Davis, Haines, 

Minhas, Munawar, O'Connor, Plenty and Smith ) 
  
DATE AND TIME: TUESDAY, 12TH JULY, 2011 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, BATH ROAD, 

SLOUGH 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

TERESA CLARK 
 
(01753) 875018 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 
RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 

AGENDA 

 
PART 1 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
 
 
 



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 
 

1.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

 (Members are reminded of their duty to declare 
personal and personal prejudicial interests in 
matters coming before this meeting as set out in the 
Local Code of Conduct). 
 

  

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 7th June, 2011 
 

1 - 6  

3.   Minutes of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Education and Children's Services 
Scrutiny Panel held on 9th June 2011 
 

7 - 8  

 SCRUTINY ISSUES 
 

4.   Member Questions 
 

  

 (An opportunity for Committee Members to receive 
a response to prior notified  questions from the 
relevant Director/ Assistant Director, relating to 
pertinent, topical issues affecting their Directorate – 
maximum of 10 minutes allocated ). 
 

  

5.   Performance and Project Reporting for 2010/11- 
end of year out-turns 
 
(10 Mins Presentation-30 Mins Questions) 
 

9 - 48  

6.   Revenue Budget Monitoring to 31st May, 
2011(Periods One and Two)-TO FOLLOW 
 
(10 Mins Presentation-30 Mins Questions) 
 

  

7.   Climate Change Strategy 
 
(10 Mins Presentation-15 Mins Questions) 
 

49 - 54  

8.   Provision of Mental Health In- Patient Beds in East 
Berkshire- Report from  Health Scrutiny Panel 
meeting held on 22nd June, 2011- TO FOLLOW 
 
(10 Mins Presentation-15 Mins Questions) 
 

  

9.   Consideration of reports marked to be noted/for 
information 
 

  

 (The Committee will consider any reports marked to 
be noted/for information and determine whether 

  



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

future scrutiny is considered necessary:  maximum 
of 5 minutes allocated). 
 

10.   Forward Work Programme 
 

55 - 56  

11.   Attendance Record 
 

57 - 58  

12.   Date of Next Meeting- 13th September, 2011 
 

  

 
 
   

 Press and Public  

   
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an 
observer. You will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in 
the Part II agenda. Special facilities may be made available for disabled or non-English 
speaking persons. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for 
furthers details. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Meeting held on Tuesday, 7th June, 2011. 
 

Present:-  Councillors M S Mann (Chair), Basharat, Davis, Haines, Minhas, 
Munawar, O'Connor, Plenty and Smith 

  

Also present under Rule 30:- Councillors Matloob and Parmar 

 
PART I 

 
1. Declaration of Interest  

 
None. 
 

2. Minutes - 31st March, 2011  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 31st March, 2011 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

3. Appointment of Scrutiny Panels  
 
The Committee considered a report recommending the re-appointment of the 
three Overview and Scrutiny Panels for the 2011/12 municipal year (it was 
noted that the number of Panels had reduced from four to three).  The 
Committee noted the seat allocations that had been calculated to reflect 
Political Group membership and statutory proportionality entitlement, which 
equated to 6 appointments to be offered to the Labour Group, 2 to the 
Conservative Group and 1 to the BILLD Group.  The Chairs of the Panels 
would be offered to a member of the Administration and it had been indicated 
that the three Vice-Chair positions would be offered to the Opposition Group.  
Details of the nominations received from the political groups were noted and 
the Committee was requested to appoint the 3 Scrutiny Panels and the 
members nominated.  Details were also presented of the co-opted members 
for formal approval. 
 
Resolved - 
 

(a) That the Panels set out in paragraph 5.1 of the report be appointed 
for the 2011/12 municipal year. 

(b) That the Committee note the allocation of seats to the Panels as set 
out in paragraph 5.2 of the report. 

(c) That the Committee agree the allocation of Chairs and Vice-Chairs of 
Panels on the basis set out in paragraph 5.3 and that the Panels be 
invited to appoint their Chairs and Vice-Chairs at their first meetings.   

(d) That Members be appointed to serve on each of the Panels in 
accordance with the wishes expressed by Political Groups in respect 
of seats allocated to them as set out in paragraph 5.4 of the report. 

(e) That the co-opted Member listed in paragraph 5.6 of the report be 
appointed to the Education & Children’s Services Panel. 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.11 

 

 
4. Member Questions  

 
Two verbal questions were submitted regarding the identification of the 
relevant officer on parking enforcement correspondence and the current 
position on Broom and Poplar.  It was agreed that the Director of Resources 
would arrange a response for the relevant members.   
 
The Committee discussed the preferred option for the notification of future 
member questions and it was suggested that it would be helpful if questions 
were submitted in advance of the meeting in order that a full response be 
provided. 
 
Resolved –  That future questions be submitted 5 clear working days in 

advance of the meeting so that a written response by the 
relevant Director can be provided at the meeting.   

 
5. Outturn 2010-11 Performance and Finance Report  

 
Julie Evans, Director of Resources, introduced a report setting out the 
Council’s overall performance from delivery of service to financial 
management for the period up to and including March 2011 against exception 
performance monitoring and outlining the revenue and capital monitoring 
position.  
 
Kevin Gordon, Assistant Director, Professional Services, referred the 
Committee to the performance aspect of the report including the SBC 
Corporate Scorecard setting out exceptions, and the Gold Project update 
which provided individual project progress reports.  It was noted that of the 8 
active gold projects, 5 had an overall green status, 2 had an amber status and 
none of the projects had a red status.  The Culture, Learning and Library 
Service Transformation programme had now been completed and the 
Committee was advised that the closure report was being developed. 
 
Members asked a number of detailed questions about various projects 
including the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme.  It was agreed 
that the Assistant Director would take these questions to the next Project 
Board meeting and provide a response to all Committee members.   Further 
questions were submitted regarding the Britwell and Haymill Regeneration 
project and the Director advised that previously this had been classed as 
more than one project incorporating several separate elements.  The Director  
responded to a number of questions regarding the Town Hall and the 
provision of future committee facilities.  The Committee was advised that in 
the medium term the building would be used as a school but it was hoped that 
the scheme would incorporate council use of the building outside of school 
hours.  Interim arrangements for meetings at St Martin’s Place would be 
explored together with the use of alternative facilities at the Centre.  The 
Director also advised that designers would be sympathetic to the protection of 
the core section of the building but highlighted that the Town Hall did not have  
listed building status and she had not yet viewed the designs for the building. 

Page 2



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.11 

 

 
In response to a question regarding the provision of storage, the Director 
advised that it was a statutory requirement that some documents must be 
retained for six years but it was not necessary to store these documents on 
site and the Council used an archive facility at Berkshire Records Office in 
Reading.  In response to a further question the Director advised that she 
would forward details of the cost of this facility to the Committee.   
 
The Committee debated the performance of NI50 – Emotional Health of 
Children and the way in which this indicator was measured.  Key Stage 2 
results were also discussed and it was clear that contributory factors included 
the fact that in many homes English was not a first language.  It was agreed 
that a response to a question regarding the failure to meet the target for 
library visits would be forwarded to the Committee.   
 
Financial Reporting 
 
Members considered the financial position that had been presented and the 
Director of Resources explained the under spend for 2010/11.  The 
Committee discussed the variances and how the underspends were treated 
with regard to virement and carry forwards.  The Committee noted the position 
regarding education budgets and that the rules on Academies were tighter 
than community schools.   
 
The Committee welcomed Emma Foy who had been appointed to the position 
of Head of Finance.   
 
Resolved – That the report be noted.   
 

6. Economic Downturn and the Effect on Slough - Update  
 
Shabnam Ali, Economic Development Policy Officer, outlined a report to 
provide an update on the Economic Downturn as requested previously at the 
Committee meeting on 10th November 2010. 
 
It was highlighted that unemployment in April 2011 was 3.9%, compared to 
2.5% in the South-East of England and 3.7% nationally.  This reflected an 
increase to 3,343 residents, up by 169 residents from November, 2010.  It 
was noted that of those claiming job seekers allowance, 2350 people had 
been unemployed for up to six months and 630 people for between 6 and 12 
months.  The number of claimants over 12 months had risen to 360 and it was 
felt that it was long term unemployment which would have potential serious 
and deep societal impacts.   
 
The Committee noted the provision of employment support, the availability of 
new jobs and the establishment of the Thames Valley Berkshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership.  The Officer concluded that the Slough economy was 
recovering at a very steady rate but much uncertainty and concern about real 
economic stability and growth remained.   
 

Page 3



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.11 

 

The Committee asked a number of questions regarding the measures being 
taken to encourage retailers to come to Slough and the proportion of jobs 
which were filled by local residents.  The Committee also discussed the skills 
mix in Slough and the importance of ensuring that 16-24 year olds were 
encouraged to engage with the voluntary sector.  The Chief Executive 
suggested that a systematic approach to voluntary work could be considered. 
 
It was agreed that a table of current statistics would be circulated to the 
Committee together with details of the number of persistent unemployed 
residents in Slough.  It was also agreed that details of the number of job 
vacancies generated by the Heart of Slough schemes would be provided to 
the Committee in respect of the number of local permanent contractors. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 

7. Census 2011- Update  
 
Naveed Mohammed, Scrutiny Officer, outlined a report providing an update 
on the delivery of the Census 2011 project in Slough.  The Officer discussed 
the delivery of the project and operational phase 2.  Feedback to date 
suggested that the response rate across Slough had been universally better 
than in 2001.  The Committee noted the importance of the quality assurance 
phase and that there was no formal deadline for the submission of information 
and data.  Slough would therefore continue to submit data on an as and when 
basis and this would be helpful where there was new evidence on sheds and 
HMO’s.  The Officer discussed the overall impact of the 2011 census project, 
and the key lessons learnt. 
 
The Officer concluded that so far the project appeared to have been a 
success in increasing the response rate and the investment in the quality 
assurance process should reinforce a higher population figure. 
 
The Committee discussed a number of areas of concern including the 
statistics for the Colnbrook with Poyle area, the lack of permanent translation 
services in the town, and the number of HMO’s in the town.  The Chief 
Executive emphasised that the changed to boundaries in 2004 would be 
based on the numbers registered on the electoral role and not on the 
population statistics gathered through the census.   
 
Resolved-  
 

(a) That the report be noted. 

(b) That the ONS be requested to attend the next meeting of the 
Committee on 12th July, 2011 to discuss a number of issues 
including data quality, quality assurance and the continuing gap.  

 
 
 

Page 4



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.11 

 

8. Future Provision of Transactional Services for Slough Borough Council - 
Progress Update Report  
 
Philip Hamberger, Assistant Director, Commercial and Transactional 
Services, outlined a report to update the Committee on the progress to-date 
regarding the procurement and establishment of the Transactional Services 
Centre in Slough.   
 
The Assistant Director discussed the management of risks which would be 
identified and managed through existing risk management policies and 
reported on a regular basis.  It was emphasised that it was important to drive 
the venture forward quickly and the Committee was referred to the 
procurement timetable.  It was noted that 8 suppliers had completed pre-
qualifying questionnaires and had submitted an outline solution.  All potential 
suppliers had attended an evaluation workshop on 28th March 2011 and the 
feedback received was positive.  300 questions were raised by suppliers 
following an invitation to submit an online solution/invitation to participate 
dialogue and these were answered in line with the timetable.  All 8 companies 
had submitted bids which were being evaluated and dialogue meetings were 
scheduled for the week commencing 13th June, 2011.  The Assistant Director 
concluded that the procurement phase was going well and on schedule.  
Further reports would be provided to the Committee as the project developed.   
 
In response to a member question, the Assistant Director confirmed that  
Transactional Services would be added to the Gold Project report as a 
standard item.  The Committee requested that an update report be provided 
at its next meeting. 
 
Resolved-  
 

(a) That the proposed recommendations to Cabinet be noted.  
 
(b)  That an update report be submitted to the Committee at its next 

meeting on 12th July, 2011. 
 

9. Consideration of reports marked to be noted/ for information  
 
No reports were received. 
 

10. Forward Work Programme  
 
A number of suggestions were made regarding items to be considered by the 
Committee.  It was suggested that the concern regarding incidents of abuse in 
Care Homes highlighted recently in the press be considered by the 
Committee and it was agreed that this matter would be referred to the Health 
Scrutiny Panel for consideration.  It was also agreed that a request to discuss  
the Council’s current policy on the Right to Buy Scheme be referred to the 
Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel for consideration. 
 
 

Page 5



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.11 

 

The programme was updated as follows: 
 

• 12th July 2011- Future Provision of Transactional Services for Slough 
Borough Council (update report). 

 
Resolved – That the Work Programme be noted.   
 

11. Date of Next Meeting - 12th July, 2011  
 
The next meeting of the Committee would be held on 12th July, 2011.   
 
 

Chair 
 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 9.19 pm) 

Page 6



 

Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Education and Children’s Services 
Scrutiny Panel – Meeting held on Thursday, 9th June, 2011. 

 
Present:-  Councillors Abe, Basharat, Davis, Dar, Haines, M S Mann, 

Minhas, Munawar, O'Connor, Sharif, Plenty and Smith 
  

Education Non-Voting Co-optee;- Mr C McGeachie 

  

Also present under Rule 30:- Councillors Plimmer 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillor P K Mann 
 

 
PART I 

 
1. Election of Chair for the Joint Meeting  

 
Councillor O’Connor was elected Chair for the duration of the meeting. 
 
(Councillor O’Connor in the Chair) 
 

2. Declaration of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

3. Presentation of Petition  
 
The Chair accepted a petition presented by Councillor Plimmer on behalf of 
residents. The petition requested the Council to “Save Horsemore Green Youth 
Centre”. The Chair advised that a more detailed report on youth services would be 
submitted to the September Education and Children’s Services Scrutiny Panel at 
which the petition would be taken into consideration. 
 

4. Call-in - Questions following the report on IYSS presented to Cabinet on 
14th March 2011  
 
The Director of Education and Children’s Services advised that the call-in had 
been received in response to a paper taken to Cabinet in March regarding 
Integrated Youth Support Services. The Call-in raised a number of questions to 
which the Director responded. 
 
One of the parties of the jointly submitted call-in advised that historically when 
youth provision passed from Berkshire to Slough it was hoped that there would be 
more control over the youth service. Currently it was hoped that a universal 
service, accessible to all Slough residents could be retained. However the 
member felt that in the previous years the service had eroded and administration 
costs had significantly increased and the number of full time youth workers had 
decreased. It was noted that the government had recently removed significant 
amounts of funding from this area of work and it was therefore not possible to 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 7



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 09.06.11 

 

compare especially as requirements of the youth service had changed 
considerably.  
 
A Member questioned how much had been taken from the budget and was 
advised that this was contained within the March Cabinet paper. Members asked 
further questions with regards to youth service provision and were advised that 
these issues were much broader than the originally call-in and could be 
addressed at the September meeting. A member advised that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee was informed that there was an underspend of £600k on the 
youth services budget and asked how much of the total budget this amounted to. 
The Director advised that the total budget was £3.69m. 
 
In response to the second question raised in the call-in the Director advised that 
centres were not being closed down but services were being delivered differently. 
A Member asked how much funding was being provided to the voluntary services 
for youth provision. The Director advised the Panel that the amount was 
approximately £75k. Slough would be looking at the overall provision of Council 
buildings and how they were utilised by different services and organisations. A 
Member raised concerns that once the buildings were sold off these could not be 
replaced if needed in the future. However it was noted by the Commissioner for 
Opportunities and Skills that this would form part of the Asset review and was not 
something that could be answered by Children’s Services. 
 
In response to the third question the Panel was advised that there was no plan to 
employ more street based teams. The current teams were very experienced in 
providing a good service and it was confirmed that this would continue to be the 
case.  A Member asked whether, with the prospect of more focus on specialist 
provision, youth workers would be able to adapt to this role. The Panel was 
advised that it was important to have youth workers who could be versatile. With 
the recent cuts the youth service had been slimmed down from 112 staff to 76 but 
57 frontline staff had been retained. 
 
The Chair advised that some of the issues raised in the meeting would be picked 
up at the September meeting and extended an invitation to all Councillors to 
attend. 
 
Resolved:-  
 
(a)  That a report on Youth Services be brought to the September meeting of the 

Scrutiny Panel. 
 
(b)  That the March Cabinet report on IYSS be distributed to Scrutiny Panel 

Members. 
 
 

Chair 
 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.02 pm) 
 

Page 8



 

 

  

 

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
   
REPORT TO: Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
DATE: 12th July, 2011 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
(For all enquiries) 
 

Kevin Gordon, Assistant Director (Professional Services) 
01753 87 5213 

WARDS All 
 

PART I 
 

FOR COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION 
 

PERFORMANCE AND PROJECT REPORTING FOR 2010/11 – END OF YEAR OUT-TURNS 
 

1. Introduction and purpose of report 
 
This report shows the performance outturns 2010/11 for the Corporate Balanced Scorecard and 
Local Area Agreement performance measures and includes an exception report which highlights 
those indicators where performance has not met target.  Please note that not all end-of-year figures 
have been fully finalised and these will be updated when available.    
 
Recommendation/proposed actions 
 
Members are asked: 
 

• To note the progress and status of performance measures in the balanced scorecard  
report.   

• To review the actions for those indicators that have not met their targets highlighted in 
the exceptions report. 

• To note the continuing gaps in the report and endorse actions. 
 
The Local Area Agreement (‘LAA’) was signed up to in 2008, as a three year improvement cycle, to 
address the key priorities for Slough identified in the Sustainable Community Strategy. During the 
lifetime of the LAA we have experienced a change in national government, a significant economic 
downturn and a complete revision of the National Indicator Framework. Many of the National 
Indicators chosen for monitoring in the LAA have subsequently been abolished, with methods for 
collection, processing and / or reporting being removed. This means that, although the ‘end’ of the 
LAA has been reached, we are unable to quantify a final position on those indicators so affected. 
Other National Indicators, whilst continuing for the moment to be collected, are not yet finalised for 
the LAA end e.g. school achievement measures which depend on the results of examinations being 
sat by pupils in the current 2011 summer term. Also, end of year reporting is subject to additional 
layers of rigorous quality assurance checks and performance indicator values are determined as part 
of a suite of statistical data reported on government prescribed statutory returns, each of which must 
pass a series of external validations before the ‘final’ result can be determined. Statutory return 
submission dates run from end of May onwards. 
 
This paper provides an update on performance covering the period to the 31st March 2011 for review. 
The performance report is split into two key areas: 

 
1. Performance Monitoring Update (detail provided in Appendices A, B, C) 
Appendices:  

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 9



 

 

  

 

 
A: Summary of good performance and corrective actions for ‘RED’ rated indicators of under 
performance. Corrective actions in cases of underperformance have been proposed by operational 
staff responsible for performance delivery, and have been endorsed by the appropriate Assistant 
Director and / or Director.  
 

B: LSP LAA Scorecard: detailed information on performance measures within the LAA. 
 

C: Slough Borough Council’s Organisational scorecard. 
 
D:  Proposal for new scorecard for use in remainder of 2011-12. 
 
2. Performance Monitoring Update  
 

2.1. The attached SBC Corporate Scorecard Exceptions Report (Appendix A) provides an 
update on exceptions during the period 1st April 2010 to 31st March 2011, drawing attention to:  
2.1.1. Areas of improved performance;  and 
2.1.2. Areas of exception.  
 

2.2. The report comprises of exceptions from both: 
 

2.2.1. The LAA Scorecard (Appendix B) - which relates to the indicators in the LAA including 
four local targets on priority areas (based on National Indicators 124, 59, 32 and 187), 
and: 

 
2.2.2. The Organisational Scorecard (Appendix C) – which relates to performance indicators 

previously selected by CMT members to determine the organisational health of the 
Council. 

 
2.2.3. For a full list of indicators please visit the link mentioned below: 

 
http://sbcinsite.ad.slough.gov.uk/3709.aspx 

 
2.2.4. Below is a summary of the RAG status for the LAA and organisational score card 

Indicators as at 31st March 2011. Those which failed to achieve target are rated ‘Red’. 
Note that 21 measures are still awaiting finalisation, due to the process of external 
validation and / or collection. 

 
RAG status  

Green Amber Red 2010/11 
Target not 
set  or 
Awaiting 
final results 

Not 
applicable 
as measure 
deleted 

Total 20 1 7 14 8 LAA measures 

Percentage 40% 2% 14% 28% 16% 

Total 8 0 2 7 2 Organisational 
measures Percentage 42% 0% 11% 37% 11% 

 
2.2.5. Appendices A-C provide fuller detail on each of the measures. 

 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

  

 

3. Next steps 
 

3.1.1. The Sustainable Community Strategy is undergoing a review and refresh, with the 
current priority areas for the local area being determined. The end of the LAA and the 
review of Sustainable Community Strategy mentioned above provides us with a rich 
opportunity to redefine both the priorities of greatest importance to Slough communities 
in 2011 and the years ahead, and to redefine the quantitative and qualitative measures 
that will best measure our collective success in addressing those priorities. To this end, 
a proposed performance management scorecard is under discussion with senior 
managers of the council. A draft version was tabled to CMT on 22nd June and a revised 
draft of this report is provided as Appendix D of this report. 

 
3.1.2. CMT have been asked to endorse the proposed method for performance reporting in 

2011-12, and to permit a similar consultation with members to ensure that a revised 
single model be adopted that also meets their requirements for scrutiny and for 
determining successful achievement of manifesto commitments. 

 
 ‘ 
 

 
‘’B’GH LSP AA 2010 - 11 PERFORMANCE STATUS AND IMPROVEMENT REPORT March 2011 Appendix 
BSLOUGH LSP LAA 2010 - 11 PERFORMANCE STATUS AND IM@BROVEMENT REPORT March 2011 Appendix 
BU SLOUGH LSP LAA 2010 - 11 PERFORMANCE STATUS AND IMPROVEMENT REPORT March 2011 Appendix 
BGH SLOUGH LSP LAA 2010 - 11 PERFORMANCE STATUS AND IMPROVEMENT REPORT March 2011 
Appendix BLSP LAA 2010 - 11 PERFORMANCE STATUS AND IMPROVEMENT REPORT March 2011 Appendix B

Page 11



 

 

  

 

 

 
 
EXCEPTION SUMMARY 
 
Many of the National Indicators can only be measured once per year. The choice of indicators monitored in quarterly reports is limited to those 
where performance information is available. 
 
Note that 40% of our LAA measures (20 discrete indicators) are rated ‘Green’ as having fully achieved or exceeded the target set. Just 7 
indicators did not achieve the ultimate aspirational target, and these are detailed beneath. The remainder are awaiting final results or can no 
longer be reported due to the national abandonment of the National Indicator collection and reporting. 
 
For measures on the organisational scorecard, 42% are rated ‘Green’ as having achieved or exceeded target. Two are reported below as not 
achieving the desired target. Two can no longer be reported against due to the national abandonment of the necessary reporting framework, 
and seven are awaiting final results. 
 
Notable successes include:  
Community Safety 
Serious acquisitive crime rate (NI 16) and assault with injury crime rates (NI 20) are down. We have fewer young offenders with fewer first time 
entrants to the criminal justice system (NI 111). A higher proportion of young offenders are now engaged in suitable employment, education or 
training (NI 45). We have achieved fewer primary fires, and corresponding reduction in fatalities and casualties (NI 49). 
 
Environment 
We have increased the proportion of household waste that is recycled or composted, and diverted waste from landfill (NI 192). Fewer children 
travel to school by car, with corresponding reduction in congestion at peak times (NI 198). 
 

 

APPENDIX A: SBC COUNCIL WIDE BALANCED SCORECARD INCORPORATING LAA TARGETS - EXCEPTIONS 
 

This exception report provides and update on performance covering the period from 1st April 2010 to 31st March 2011. It comprises 7 exceptions from the 
LAA Balanced Scorecard and 2 from the Corporate Balanced Scorecard. This report relates to performance indicators selected by members of CMT to 
determine the organisational health of the council and those related to indicators in the LAA. 
 

PLEASE VISIT:  http://sbcinsite.ad.slough.gov.uk/3709.aspx  - FOR A FULL LIST OF ALL INDICATORS 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2



 

 

  

 

Economy and Skills 
More Slough children now achieve better results at Early Years Foundation Stage (NI 72), make the required progress in maths throughout 
primary schooling (NI 94) and we are closing the gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their peers at end of primary school (NI 
102a).  Slough secondary schools continue to achieve well above comparator averages at GCSE level (NI 75) and maintain low secondary 
school absence levels (NI 87).   
 
Health and Wellbeing 
We have exceeded targets for increasing the proportion of adult social care users who have self-directed support packages (NI 130), providing 
greater choice and control, and increased the proportion of carers being assessed and provided with support or information and guidance for 
their caring responsibilities (NI 135). 
 
The 9 LAA indicators given a Red status are shown below together with any comments / corrective-actions: 
 
LAA Measures 
 

• NI 8: Adult participation (16+) in sport.  Participation in moderate intensity (includes some light intensity for 65+) sport/recreation 
for 30 minutes three or more days a week. 
This indicator measures the proportion of surveyed adults who self-report that they take part in moderate intensity sport or other physical 
exercise several times a week. As such, a high and increasing proportion would indicate greater general exercise levels, with positive 
implications for health and wellbeing.  
The original National Indicator has been deleted, but Slough has adopted a local proxy measure to stand in its place. The most recent 
update (June 2011) indicates that 16.9% of surveyed adults took part in the requisite physical activity for the rolling period April 2009- April 
2011. This represents an increase of 2.3% from the original baseline (14.6% for the rolling period April 08 - April 2010). We have therefore 
secured a positive move in the desired direction (i.e. more adult participation) but have not achieved the level of our aspirational LAA 
target.   
 
Corrective Actions: 
The Slough Sport and Physical Activity Forum has developed an action plan (adopted by the Slough Active Team) to encourage wider 
participation in sport and exercise across all age groups. Actions taken to date include:  

• a successful bid for LPSA funding to increase gym membership,  

• a targeted marketing campaign to increase frequency of use of sporting facilities and the promotion of free swimming for children 
and those aged 60 plus,  

• the opening of the new Gym in the Slough Trading Estate together with Go Karting facilities.  

P
a
g
e
 1

3



 

 

  

 

• Actions and progress are monitored regularly by the Health and Wellbeing Priority Delivery Group. Five potential local measures 
are giving us a better understanding of local issues and are under review. These will underpin a more robust action plan which is 
being developed with support from IDeA. 

 

• NI 59: Initial assessments for children’s social care carried out within 7 working days of referral 
This indicator tries to establish whether children who are in need are having their needs assessed rapidly. The thinking behind it is that 
swift assessment of needs will lead in turn to swift service provision to meet those needs. Note that the measure is a crude one in 
delivering this objective, makes no reference to the quality of the assessments and does not lead onto any information as to the provision 
of any required support. As such, it has been criticised in the Munro review of child protection and children's services, and has been 
proposed in that report for deletion. 
 
Latest provisional performance for the end of March 2011 is at 69.7%. The last reported comparator values were those achieved in 
2009/10 when the England average was 67.1%, and our statistical neighbour group average (67.7%). Our indicative outturn is above these 
last known average positions. Comparisons for 2010/11 will not be released until autumn of this year. 
 
Note: All Initial Assessment visits are undertaken within the statutory timescales, so children’s immediate safety is always assessed.  
 
Corrective Actions: 

• ‘Blitz days’ in place to permit workers sufficient time to prioritise write ups. 

• Training to be set up by Assistant Team Managers to assist workers in developing concise assessment reports and analysis skills. 

• Close monitoring of numbers of referrals through weekly review. 

• Regular auditing of re-referrals and Initial Assessments to ensure consistent thresholds for services. 

• Further developing the ‘First Response’ service (expanding on the previous Triage service) to more appropriately direct emerging 
needs for swift remedial action and support. 

• Tight management oversight and review of assessment completion through fortnightly ICS steady state meetings. 

• Developing robust multi-agency responses and services to families that prevent them from needing social work intervention. 
 

 

• NI 73: Achievement at level 4 or above in both English and Maths at Key Stage 2  
This indicator measures the successful achievement of core standards by individual children in both English and Maths in the final year of 
primary school, and is measured once a year through national assessment testing. Achievement of national UK standards is more 
challenging in areas such as Slough, where a higher than average proportion of pupils will have English as an additional language. 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

4



 

 

  

 

Slough’s 2010 performance of 71% means that 71% of pupils achieved the required standard in both subjects. This does not reach our 
aspirational target of 75%, but does represent a significant increase (by 4%) from the year before. 
 
These results were likely to have been higher however the 2010 results exclude two of our high performing primary schools which 
boycotted the national SAT's and therefore cannot contribute data to the overall result. 

 

Corrective Action: 
Key Stage 2 results for 2010 show an improvement in performance for the first time in a number of years. However, this is not leading to 
complacency, but new vigour in intensifying the focused action in this area. Increased emphasis is being placed by the Local Authority on 
effective leadership and management, teaching and learning, assessment and data analysis to inform teaching, strengthening governance 
and improving attendance. The Local Authority has recently shifted its focus to concentrate primarily on its statutory functions of early 
support, monitoring, challenge and intervention. There is an intense drive on school improvement and raising standards, particularly with 
vulnerable groups. Schools are also very aware of the importance of driving hard on improvement and raising standards. The positive 
inspections which have taken place over recent months have shown an increase in good and outstanding outcomes supported by 
improvements in pupil attainment and progress. Activities within schools include the improved use of tracking and target setting to assess 
and drive pupil progress. There is also the judicious use of national programmes, one-to-one tuition and other intervention programmes 
used appropriately in schools, including modelling and the use of advanced skills teachers. The introduction of the Pupil Premium gives 
the possibility of smaller classes and more one-to-one tuition for the disadvantaged that will give increased opportunities and additional 
impetus to raising standards. 

 

• NI 92: Narrowing the gap between the lowest achieving 20% in the Early Years Foundation Stage (‘EYFS’) Profile and the rest  
This indicator looks at educational success at the start of primary school. As such it is an effective measurement of the extent to which 
children are ready for school, and provides a baseline to inform their later achievement. In particular, NI 92 looks at the gap in 
achievement between the 20% of pupils who achieve lowest scores and the rest of their classmates. A large gap indicates a significant 
difference in readiness for school and places a context on the amount of progress that schools will be expected to make with their pupils if 
these inequalities of achievement are to be minimised. Efforts to reduce the gap must be directed at pre-school age children in order to 
have the most effect, but can be supported by more intensive support to children in their first year at school. 
 
In 2009/10 the performance gap in Slough was 35.9%. This represents a small improvement of 1% from the previous year, meaning that 
the gap is closing.  However the Slough gap remains 1.7% wider than our target for 2009/10 (gap target was 34.2%).  

 
Corrective Action: 
The Sure Start Service has increased its emphasis on supporting and driving achievement, particularly for those most vulnerable to poor 
achievement, in line with the new national focus. Early intervention with school-type nursery provision for two year olds is seen as a 

P
a
g
e
 1

5



 

 

  

 

significant contribution to improvements in EYFS results in due course. More funding is being invested in contributing to the EYFS agenda 
and in integrating this work with the broader school improvement work which is more focused on the statutory responsibilities around 
monitoring, challenge and intervention. Efforts to support parents in providing children with pre-school learning and skills development are 
critical, and are needed from across the community and local partnership. 

 

• NI 93: Progression by 2 levels in English between Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 
This measure assesses the progress made by pupils between educational key stage 1 (school years 1 and 2) and key stage 2 (school 
years 3 to 6). All children – regardless of starting point - are expected to make at least two levels of individual progress in this core subject 
over the course of their primary schooling. The measure therefore represents the proportion of children who have made at least two levels 
of progress in this time. 
 
Slough's 2010 performance of 84% represents a 5% improvement from the previous year of 79%.  Whilst our performance is now in-line 
with the national and South East averages of 84%, we narrowly failed to achieve our 2009/10 target (85%) by just 1 percentage point 
which is the only reason this indicator is marked as red.  

 
Corrective Action: 
Increased emphasis is being placed by the Local Authority on effective leadership and management, teaching and learning, assessment 
and data analysis to inform teaching and strengthen governance. Activities include the improved use of individualised tracking and target 
setting to assess and drive pupil progress. There is also the judicious use of national programmes, one-to-one tuition and other 
intervention programmes used appropriately in schools, including modelling and the use of advanced skills teachers. Education is not 
solely achieved at school, and therefore families and all interested community partners also have a role to play in enabling pupil progress. 

 

• NI 102(b): Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their peers achieving the expected level at Key 
Stage 4 
This measure assesses the differential achievement at key stage 4 (GCSE - year 11) between those children eligible for free school meals 
(‘FSM’) and their peers. Eligibility for free school meals is means-tested and therefore indicates low family income levels. Pupils with FSM 
have for many years been shown to achieve less well than others across the UK. Reducing this particular achievement gap is therefore 
key to ensuring childhood low-income does not limit later individual success and is critical in breaking cycles of generational poverty. 
This indicator is particularly difficult in Slough due to the high levels of deprivation in Slough in comparison to our neighbouring boroughs 
and the large number of children coming into Slough at Key Stage 4 from those neighbouring boroughs because of the local grammar 
school system. 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6



 

 

  

 

In 2009/10 Slough’s Free School Meals (‘FSM’) gap figure was 35%; this is 1.5% wider than the previous year’s value (33.5%) and 
therefore shows that the gap has widened rather than reduced. The local FSM gap is just 1% wider than the South East's gap of 34% and 
only 2% adrift of our 2009/10 gap target of 33%. 
 
Improvements have been achieved by both pupils with FSM and those without FSM at this key stage. The results of Key Stage 4 pupils 
with no FSM improved by 4% year-in-year whereas pupils with FSM improved by a lower value of 2%; this imbalance in achievement has 
resulted in the FSM gap widening. 
 
Of our eleven secondary schools, our four selective grammar schools have a low percentage of pupils eligible for FSM. This contributes to 
the high achievement of KS4 pupils with no FSM (68% of which achieve the GCSE standard, ranking Slough 10th nationally) compared 
with KS4 pupils eligible for FSM (33% of whom achieve the GCSE standard, ranking Slough 41st nationally). 
 
Corrective Action: 
Any corrective action needs to be tempered by the fact that Slough pupils on Free School Meals (FSM) are making significant progress 
over the course of their education and by the end of Key Stage 4 have moved to a national ranking of 41st nationally out of 152 authorities. 
At the same time this is not grounds for complacency. The Local Authority is currently upping its game in intensifying early support, and in 
monitoring, challenge and intervention with school improvement and raising standards, particularly focusing on vulnerable groups, such as 
those disadvantaged pupils on free school meals, as well as those with additional needs and those looked after. Recently, we have had 
Ofsted inspections of Slough secondary schools where all of the outcomes have been good or outstanding. The School Improvement 
Team is about to commission arrangements to bring in a senior officer to work intensively with schools on targeting vulnerable groups, 
including those with free school meals. Also data analysis is being focused to drill down to groups and individuals who require intensive 
support to raise their attainments. This data analysis and associated assessment is being used to inform teaching and learning, and to 
raise standards. Schools have recently reviewed their funding and have given priority in the allocation of spend to school improvement, 
standards and driving the attainment and progress of vulnerable groups. Additional support is currently available through one-to-one tuition 
alongside the allocation of the new Pupil Premium with the expectation this will be used to give smaller classes and more one-to-one 
tuition for the disadvantaged. The one-to-one tuition which is already in place has been proven to be beneficial. New data will be out in 
August (relating to exams sat in summer 2011) which will confirm whether or not these approaches have been successful. 

 
Organisational Measures 

 

• Proxy Indicator for NI 9: Use of Public Libraries. The number of physical visits per 1000 population. 
This measure is used to quantify the physical usage of libraries within the borough, and provides an indication of the extent to which this 
service is valued and used by the public. Given the variety of reasons for visiting libraries, increasing this measure can also be viewed as 
contributing to a cross-cutting number of priorities including improving educational success, employment options and general wellbeing. 

P
a
g
e
 1

7



 

 

  

 

 
The validated end of year performance will be available once the Public libraries CIPFA return is fully completed in June. Provisional 
performance is of 628,511 visits for the financial year April 2010 to March 2011 against our target of 656,000 visits shows we are below 
target and represents a decreasing trend. The principal reason for the trend is a steady decline in visits at the Central Library, which 
accounts for around 80% of all visits, which was in large part due to the need for refurbishment. Improved facilities at Cippenham and 
Langley resulted in increased visits at those venues. Other reasons for not achieving the 2010/11 target are: unreliability of public access 
PCs and impact of SBC server move; refurbishment at Langley and Slough resulted in no automatic people counters from September to 
December 2010 and a period of closure so estimates have been used. Although overall physical visits are showing a decreasing trend, it is 
important to note that virtual visits are continuing to show a strong increase as users access library services in other ways. 

 

Corrective Actions for 2011/12: 
• Working with IT to improve the functionality and accessibility of public PCs. 

• Building improvement plan for each library to improve accessibility and environment. 

• Museum moving in to Slough central will increase range of visitors. 

• New branding and publicity will improve the look and feel of the libraries. 

• The range, display and presentation of stock are being improved. 

• More robust performance system in place with clear priorities. 

• Satellite libraries in Colnbrook, Chalvey and Wexham with improved access to services. 
 

• NI 65: Children becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan (‘CPP’) for a second or subsequent time 
This measure determines the proportion of children who have become subject to a child protection plan for a second or subsequent time. 
Nationally acknowledged ‘best practice’ states that a value of between 10 and 15% provides the best balance, and that as values diverge 
(either above 15% or below 10%) councils should investigate to assure that there are no wider concerns as to quality of practice or 
community support to families who have previously needed this level of support. 
 
Note that this indicator takes no account of time between CP Plans, nor of the reasons for the child becoming subject to a CPP. So, in 
theory a child may have a CPP briefly at birth, then again aged 17 for entirely different reasons and show up on this indicator. 
 
In the year to March 31st 2011, a total of 162 children became subject to child protection plans; 30 of these had previously been subject to 
such an intervention to mitigate risk. The end of year outturn is therefore 18.5% - a higher value than our target, and above the ‘Best 
practice’ zone of 10-15%.  
In the majority of our Child Protection Plans, lasting improvements in child safety and overall well-being are achieved, which lead to the 
vast majority of children not requiring another CPP.  
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8



 

 

  

 

Corrective Actions: 

• All children who become subject to a CPP for a subsequent time will be assessed to determine the common pre-disposal factors to 
repeated risk. This will assist in determining and commissioning the most appropriate community interventions and support.  

• Children’s Social care will work ever more closely with community early intervention agencies and partner organisations to develop a 
sustainable ‘step down’ procedure that ensures families, children and young people have a comprehensive support plan in place to 
fully provide the assistance they need when discharged from a formal CPP. This will help ensure that child protection risk, once 
reduced to the point that a formal CPP can be ended, does not re-escalate at a later point.  

P
a
g
e
 1

9



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

P
a

rt
 O

n
e

N
I 
1

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
h
e
s
io

n

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 b

e
lie

v
e
 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

e
t 
o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 

P
S

A
 2

1

6
8
.5

(0
8
/0

9

P
la

c
e

S
u
rv

e
y
)

7
2
.3

%
-

b
ie

n
n
ia

l
-

-
-

D
e
le

te
d

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

N
o
t

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
( 

2
 y

e
a
rl
y
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
) 

F
o
r 

0
8
/0

9
 S

lo
u
g
h
's

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

a
t 
a
t 
6
8
.5

0
%

 w
h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
t 
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

q
u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
S

E
 R

e
g
io

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 w

a
s
7
8
.9

%
. 
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

v
a
lu

e
 w

a
s
 7

6
.4

%
. 
 T

h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 f
o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

P
la

c
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 b

ie
n
n
ia

l.
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
A

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

N
I 
5

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
h
e
s
io

n

O
v
e
ra

ll/
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 

6
3
.6

%

(0
8
/0

9

P
la

c
e

S
u
rv

e
y
)

6
7
.0

%
-

b
ie

n
n
ia

l
-

-
-

D
e
le

te
d

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

-
-

T
h
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 
N

o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
lic

a
b
le

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

.

N
I 
8

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

A
d

u
lt

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 (
1
6
+

) 

in
 s

p
o

rt
. 

 P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

m
o
d
e
ra

te

in
te

n
s
it
y
(i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 

lig
h
t 
in

te
n
s
it
y
 f
o
r 

6
5
+

)s
p
o
rt

/r
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

3
0
 

m
in

u
te

s
 t
h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

d
a
y
s
 a

 w
e
e
k
. 
D

E
L
E

T
E

D
 

F
O

R
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 b

u
t 
h
a
v
e
 

p
ro

x
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

1
9
.4

%

2
0
0
5
/0

6

2
4
.4

%
2
5
.0

%
1
4
.6

%
  
F

o
r 

th
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 -

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
0
 (

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 -

 

la
te

s
t 
u
p
d
a
te

)

-
-

-
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 u

p
d
a
te

 

fo
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 

A
p
ri
l 
0
9
- 

A
p
ri
l 
1
1
 

is
 1

6
.9

%

R
E

D
lo

w
e
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 

0
8
 -

 M
a
r 

0
9

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
u
p
d
a
te

(J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
) 

is
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 
1
6
.9

%
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
- 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
.3

%
 f
ro

m
 1

4
.6

%
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 
0
8
 -

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
. 
  
T

h
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 S

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 (

a
d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 A

c
ti
v
e
 T

e
a
m

) 
to

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 w

id
e
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

a
te

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
a
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
id

 f
o
r 

L
P

S
A

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 g

y
m

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

in
g
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fr

e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d
 6

0
 p

lu
s
, 
th

e
 

o
p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 G
y
m

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 T

ra
d
in

g
 E

s
ta

te
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 G

o
 

K
a
rt

in
g
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

re
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 P

D
G

. 
  
5
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lo

c
a
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 g

iv
in

g
 u

s
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
 a

 m
o
re

 

ro
b
u
s
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 I
D

e
A

. 

N
I 
1
3

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

[L
O

C
A

L
] 
M

ig
ra

n
ts

 E
n
g
lis

h
 

la
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
: 
 T

h
e
 %

 o
f 
n
o
n
 -

E
n
g
lis

h
 s

p
e
a
k
in

g
 t
h
ir
d
 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
ls

 e
n
ro

lli
n
g
 

fo
r 

E
S

O
L
 C

o
u
rs

e
s
(f

u
ll 

o
r 

p
a
rt

ia
l)
 w

h
o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
.

7
5
.3

%
(0

7
/

0
8
)

8
4
.3

%
-

-
-

-
-

D
e
le

te
d

-
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
D

u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
fi
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t 
fr

o
m

 

0
8
/0

9
. 
 A

 l
o
c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

Page 21



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I 
1
6

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 A

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 

ra
te

 P
S

A
 2

3

4
1
.8

6
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

4
9
9
8

c
ri
m

e
s

 3
3
.8

2
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

4
.8

9
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

-
3
6
.2

5
 c

ri
m

e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
s
 =

 4
3
9
4

7
.1

3
 o

r 

9
2
0

c
ri
m

e
s

1
4
.8

6
 o

r 

1
8
7
0

c
ri
m

e
s

2
3
.4

5
 o

r 

3
0
1
1
 c

ri
m

e
s

3
1
.3

2
 o

r 
4
0
2
1
 

c
ri
m

e
s

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s

u
s
ta

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 b

u
t 
is

 n
o
t 
lim

it
e
d
 t
o
:

• 
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
lo

c
a
lis

e
d
 m

a
p
s
 a

t 
s
e
c
to

r 

ta
s
k
in

g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

• 
T

ra
ff
o
rd

 h
a
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 3

3
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

A
C

: 
c
ri
m

e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
T

ra
ff
o
rd

 f
o
r 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
s
e
, 
• 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
rd

e
n
in

g
 i
n
 h

o
ts

p
o
t 
a
re

a
s
 

(g
a
ti
n
g
, 
C

C
T

V
 e

tc
),

 •
 •

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
O

p
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
r 

p
a
tr

o
ls

 o
f 
a
ll 

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

 

o
f 
S

A
C

 

• 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
n
s
c
ri
p
t 
(t

a
c
k
lin

g
 r

o
b
b
e
ri
e
s
) 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

v
e
rt

 p
a
tr

o
ls

, 
ta

rg
e
ti
n
g
 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
p
e
c
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

 r
a
p
id

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

• 
T

ra
p
 c

a
r 

d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
ts

. 

• 
L
ia

is
o
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 t
e
a
m

s
, 
B

T
P

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 

P
C

T
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

• 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

o
b
 –

 A
 –

 R
o
b
b
e
r 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
h
ild

 r
o
b
b
e
ri
e
s
.

N
I 
1
7

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

P
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

P
S

A
 2

3

3
5
.3

%

B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

P
la

c
e

S
u
rv

e
y

2
0
0
8
/0

9

3
1
.4

%
-

4
8
.8

%
-

-
-

D
e
le

te
d

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

-
-

T
h
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 
N

o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
lic

a
b
le

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 a

re
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 a

 p
ro

x
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

.

N
I 
2
0

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

A
s
s
a
u
lt
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 c

ri
m

e
 

ra
te

 P
S

A
 2

5

1
1
3
0

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s

1
1
.1

3

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

(0
8
/0

9

d
a
ta

 u
s
e
d
 

a
s

b
a
s
e
lin

e
)

B
a
s
e
lin

e

m
in

u
s
 3

%
 

S
e
e

c
o
m

m
e
n
ta

r

y
 f
o
r 

G
O

S
E

 

C
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n

-
1
1
.0

8
 c

ri
m

e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
s
 =

 1
3
4
3

2
.2

4
 o

r 

2
8
7

c
ri
m

e
s

4
.8

1
 o

r 
6
0
5
 

c
ri
m

e
s

6
.6

 o
r 

8
4
8
 

c
ri
m

e
s

8
.1

2
 o

r 
1
0
4
3
 

c
ri
m

e
s

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

u
s
ta

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
  
- 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

, 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
IC

O
A

 m
a
p
s
 t
o
 a

id
 d

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
;O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

lu
b
b
e
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 ,
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 T

V
P

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
; 

T
V

P
 b

id
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 S
g
t 
a
n
d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
8
 P

C
s
 e

a
c
h
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 h

o
ts

p
o
ts

. 
• 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 S

ta
y
s
a
fe

 w
ill

 r
u
n
 4

 t
im

e
s
 t
o
  
th

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
 n

o
 s

a
le

s
 o

f 
s
in

g
le

 c
a
n
s
; 
S

a
lt
 H

ill
 P

a
r k

- 
3
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
  
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 C

C
T

V
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

v
e
r 

S
a
lt
 H

ill
 a

n
d
 

B
a
y
lis

 P
a
rk

s
 -

 k
n
o
w

n
 h

o
ts

p
o
ts

 f
o
r 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
b
. 
U

s
e
 o

f 
k
n
if
e
 a

rc
h
e
s
 n

e
a
r 

lic
e
n
s
e
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

N
I 
3
2
 

lo
c
a
l

(a
)

a
) 

1
1
6
 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

a
)1

5
0

b
)-

5
2
%

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

N
I 

3
2

 

lo
c
a

l

(b
)

b
) 

-4
8
.3

9
%

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

tb
c

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

N
I 
3
5

A
v
e
ra

g
e
  
- 

2
.3

 -
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 -

4
.2

T
o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 2

.5

N
I 
3
5
 

(P
a
rt

P
a
rt

 1
 -

 3
P

a
rt

 1
- 

3
.2

5
-

P
a
rt

 1
 -

 3

N
I 
3
5
 

(P
a
rt

P
a
rt

 2
 -

 2
P

a
rt

 2
 –

 3
.5

-
P

a
rt

 2
 -

 2

N
I 
3
5
 

(P
a
rt

P
a
rt

 3
 -

 2
P

a
rt

 3
 –

 5
-

P
a
rt

 3
 -

 2

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
ly

. 
A

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

lig
n
s
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
r 

le
v
e
ls

 s
e
t 

b
y
 t
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 7

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

o
m

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 "

p
re

v
e
n
t 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
" 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
. 
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

o
th

 a
t 
S

A
V

E
 

s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 
T

h
is

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 d

ri
v
e
r 

h
a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
.

S
a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

(a
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

/v
is

it
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 
ru

n
 b

y
 

E
a
s
t 
B

e
rk

s
h
ir
e
 W

o
m

e
n
's

 

A
id

  
 (

b
) 

A
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
D

A
 

fo
r 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s

B
u
ild

in
g
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 

v
io

le
n
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 P
S

A
 2

6

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

c
o
h
e
s
io

n

-
-

-
-

-

n
/a

n
o
t 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

D
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

Page 22



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I 
3
5
 

P
a
rt

 4
 -

 2
P

a
rt

 4
 -

 5
-

P
a
rt

 4
 -

 3

N
I 
3
8

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

D
ru

g
-r

e
la

te
d
 (

C
la

s
s
 A

) 

o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

 P
S

A
 2

5

 E
m

e
rg

in
g
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e

1
.2

3

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 9

%
 

b
e
lo

w

b
a
s
e
lin

e

a
c
ro

s
s

1
0
/1

1

-
8
8
.0

%
1
.1

6
 (

6
7
 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s

fr
o
m

 a
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d

5
7
.1

6
)

1
.3

5
 (

1
4
5
 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s

fr
o
m

 a
 

p
re

d
ic

a
te

d

1
0
7
.3

)

1
.1

7
 (

1
7
7
 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 f
ro

m
 

a
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 

1
5
1
)

E
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

n
/a

-
-

T
a
rg

e
t 
to

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 v

ia
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 O

ff
e
n
d
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 u

s
e
r 

c
u
s
to

d
y
 i
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 k

e
y
 

ti
m

e
s
, 
ro

b
u
s
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
re

p
e
a
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
.

N
I 
4
5

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

(7
1
.9

%

0
6
/0

7
 P

e
rf

 

D
a
ta

 u
s
e
d
 

fo
r 

L
A

A
)

7
9
.3

%
-

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
o
r 

0
9
/1

0
:

7
4
.8

5
%

(1
2
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
6
7
)

8
7
.1

%

(2
7
/3

1
)

8
2
.6

%

(1
9
/2

3
)

8
3
.3

 %
 

(2
0
/2

4
)

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

 f
o
r 

1
0
/1

1
:

8
2
%

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 o

f 
8
2
%

 i
s
 

a
 7

.1
5
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
7
4
.8

5
%

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

is
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
7
9
%

 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
 F

u
ll 

T
im

e
 E

T
E

 

a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 Y

O
T

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

v
a
ri
e
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
e
 c

a
s
e
 c

a
n
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
v
e
 o

n
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

N
I 
4
9

*N
I4

9
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 

fi
re

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 f
a
ta

lit
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 n

o
n
-f

a
ta

l 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

re
c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry

 

c
h
e
c
k
s
).

-
-

-
-

N
I 
4
9
 

(1
)

(1
.)

 T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
;

2
5
4
.7

 f
ir
e
s
 

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

(3
 

y
e
a
r

to
ta

l:
7
6
4
.2

2
).

  
T

h
is

 

in
c
lu

d
e
s

8
5
.1

9

d
w

e
lli

n
g

fi
re

s
(3

 y
e
a
r 

to
ta

l:
2
5
5
.5

9
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
3
8
.5

 f
ir
e
s
 (

 

3
 y

e
a
r 

to
ta

l 

7
1
5
.7

)i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 7

8
.3

8
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

fi
re

s
 (

3
 y

e
a
r 

to
ta

l:

2
3
5
.1

5
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-
2
8
0
 f
ir
e
s
. 
2
.3

3
 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

4
5
.1

7
 o

r 

5
8

in
c
id

e
n
ts

1
1
7
 o

r 

9
1
.1

2

in
c
id

e
n
ts

1
7
8
 o

r 

1
3
8
.6

2

in
c
id

e
n
ts

-
-

D
E

L
E

T
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 S
E

T
 A

S
 F

R
O

M
 A

P
R

IL
 2

0
1
0
. 

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 i
s
: 
 •

 6
9
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
 f
ir
e
s
; 
• 

6
1
 v

e
h
ic

le
 f
ir
e
s
; 
• 

4
1
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
; 
• 

7
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 F

u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

o
f 
N

I3
3
 a

n
d
 4

9
 

: 
• 

E
S

O
L
–
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
 F

ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
c
h
ip

 

p
a
n
/f
a
t 
fi
re

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
o
u
r 

o
f 
F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
. 
• 

B
e
tt
e
r 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 S

lo
u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r’
s
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

a
n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
p
p
in

g
. 
• 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 Y

M
C

A
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 f
ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 R

o
m

a
n
ia

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
• 

H
o
ts

tr
ik

e
s
/h

o
m

e
 f
ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 f
ir
e
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d

N
I 
4
9
 

(2
)

(2
.)

 T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
ta

lit
ie

s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

fi
re

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

1
1

-
0
 f
a
ta

l 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
0

0
0

-
R

a
n
k
e
d
 5

th
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
6
th

 

lo
w

e
s
t 
in

 

B
e
rk

s
h
ir
e

0
8
/0

9

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

–
 1

 c
a
u
s
e
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
, 
fi
re

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 (

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
t 
h
a
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
).

R
B

F
R

S
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
in

c
id

e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 c

la
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
n
 f
ir
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 f
a
ta

lit
y
. 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
o
n
 

ta
rg

e
t.

N
I 
4
9
 

(3
)

(3
.)

 T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
o
n
-

fa
ta

l 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
re

c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry

 c
h
e
c
k
s
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

2
5
.1

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie
s

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r

(3
 y

e
a
r 

to
ta

l:
7
5
.3

1

) 
p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
2
.9

4

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie
s

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

 (
 3

 

y
e
a
r

to
ta

l:
6
7
.7

8
)

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

0
6
.6

6
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
8
 

a
c
tu

a
l 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

3
.1

1
 o

r 
4
 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

3
.1

1
 o

r 
4
 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

7
.0

0
 o

r 
9
 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

-
-

A
ll 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 a

c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
 f
ir
e
s
: 
A

p
ri
l 
–
 3

 c
a
u
s
e
: 
1
 x

 c
h
ild

 f
ir
e
 

p
la

y
, 
2
 x

 c
a
re

le
s
s
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 (
1
 b

e
lie

v
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h
o
l)
 J

u
n
e
 –

 1
 c

a
u
s
e
: 
fe

ll 
a
s
le

e
p
 w

h
ile

 c
o
o
k
in

g
 J

u
ly

 –
 1

 

c
a
u
s
e
: 
d
is

tr
a
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
ile

 c
o
o
k
in

g
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

–
 4

 c
a
u
s
e
: 
3
 e

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
fi
re

s
 a

n
d
 

1
 c

a
re

le
s
s
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
a
n
d
le

s
.

S
a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

A
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

G
R

E
E

N

Page 23



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I 
5
0

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

E
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 o

f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 P
S

A
 1

2
  

T
h
e
 f
o
u
r 

s
u
rv

e
y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
  
u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

fo
rm

 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
re

:•
 I
 

h
a
v
e
 o

n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 g
o
o
d
 

fr
ie

n
d
s
.•

 W
h
e
n
 I
’m

 w
o
rr

ie
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 
s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 I
 c

a
n
 t
a
lk

 

to
 m

y
 m

u
m

 o
r 

d
a
d
. 
• 

W
h
e
n
 I
’m

 w
o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 I
 c

a
n
 t
a
lk

 t
o
 m

y
 

fr
ie

n
d
s
. 
• 

W
h
e
n
 I
’m

 

w
o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 I
 

c
a
n
 t
a
lk

 t
o
 a

n
 a

d
u
lt
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 m

y
 m

u
m

 o
r 

d
a
d
. 

6
0
.9

%
6
9
.0

%
-

5
5
.2

%
-

-
-

S
u
rv

e
y
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

N
o
t

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

3
rd

 Q
u
a
rt

ile
6
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 

S
N

 G
ro

u
p

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 T
e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

s
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

ro
p
 b

y
 6

.2
%

 f
ro

m
 6

1
.4

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
3
 n

e
w

 

w
e
ig

h
ti
n
g
) 

to
 5

5
.2

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
4
).

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ic

tu
re

 w
h
ic

h
 

d
e
c
lin

e
d
 b

y
 6

.6
%

 a
n
d
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 r
a
n
g
in

g
 f
ro

m
 a

 

d
e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
4
.5

%
 t
o
 1

0
.1

%
. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 3

rd
 q

u
a
rt

ile
, 
ra

n
k
e
d
 

9
8
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 (
o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
s
) 

a
n
d
 6

th
 (

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
) 

in
 o

u
r 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 9

.7
%

 b
e
lo

w
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
6
4
.9

%
. 
T

e
llu

s
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

b
e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
s
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
re

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
T

h
e
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

. 
W

o
rk

 o
n
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 B

E
C

H
S

. 
A

t 
a
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
le

v
e
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 

in
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
le

a
rn

in
g
 (

S
E

A
L
).

 I
n
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 d

o
m

a
in

, 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 b
y
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
A

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e

N
I 
5
6

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

O
b
e
s
it
y
 a

m
o
n
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 

Y
e
a
r 

6
 D

C
S

F
 D

S
O

2
2
.1

%

0
6
/0

7

1
8
.8

%
-

2
1
.4

%
-

-
-

N
e
x
t 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1
1

n
/a

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 T
e

llu
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s
 S

lo
u

g
h

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
ro

p
 b

y
 6

.2
%

 f
ro

m
 6

1
.4

%
 (

T
e

llu
s
3

 n
e

w
 w

e
ig

h
ti
n

g
) 

to
 5

5
.2

%
 (

T
e

llu
s
4

).
  

T
h

is
 i
s
 

in
lin

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ic
tu

re
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
c
lin

e
d

 b
y
 6

.6
%

 a
n

d
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 

ra
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
 d

e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
4

.5
%

 t
o

 1
0

.1
%

. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e

s
 S

lo
u

g
h

 i
s
 t

h
e

 3
rd

 q
u

a
rt

ile
, 

ra
n

k
e

d
 9

8
th

 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 (

o
u

t 
o

f 
1

5
2

 L
A

s
) 

a
n

d
 6

th
 (

o
u

t 
o

f 
1

1
) 

in
 o

u
r 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 9

.7
%

 b
e

lo
w

 

o
u

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

6
4

.9
%

. 
T

e
llu

s
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

b
e

in
g

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

s
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

T
h

e
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 

a
 h

ig
h

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
. 

W
o

rk
 o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n

 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
’s

 e
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 B

E
C

H
S

. 
A

t 

a
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
le

v
e

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
o

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 e
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 

o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 (

S
E

A
L

).
 I

n
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 d
o

m
a

in
, 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
n

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 i
n

 n
e

e
d

 p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 b
y
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

A
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 

n
e

e
d

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 C

h
ild

 a
n

d
 A

d
o

le
s
c
e

n
t 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 (
C

A
M

H
S

) 
H

u
b

 s
ig

n
p

o
s
ts

 a
n

a
rr

a
n

g
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
. 

T
h

is
 H

u
b

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 v
e

ry
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

re
a

 r
a

th
e

r 

th
a

n
 b

e
in

g
 e

s
c
a

la
te

d
 t

o
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

a
n

d
 a

c
u

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

.

D
a

ta
 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
, 

a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 P

C
T

, 
w

it
h

 c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

It
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

 v
it
a

l 
s
ig

n
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 s

a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 h

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
s
s
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

re
le

a
s
e

d
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
w

a
s
 2

1
.4

%
 t

h
u

s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
2

%
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 1
9

.4
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 o
u

r 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
s
 (

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
1

6
.6

%
 a

n
d

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 

1
8

.7
%

) 
a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 2

%
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

9
.4

%
.

C
o

rr
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

N
I 

5
6

:

P
C

T
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

lla
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 w

ill
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 m

a
p

p
e

d
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 u

n
ti
l 
e

a
rl
y
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
ro

s
s
 b

o
rd

e
r 

is
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 h

a
n

d
le

d
 a

t 
a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
a

t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 k
e

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 r

a
te

s
 t

o
:

• 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 c
h

ild
h

o
o

d
 o

b
e

s
it
y
. 

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

. 

• 
T

a
rg

e
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 w

a
rd

s
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
s
e

 k
e

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
:

• 
F

a
m

ily
 W

e
ig

h
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 c

h
ild

re
n

 7
-1

2
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
a

g
e

.

• 
C

h
ild

 M
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 Y
e

a
r 

1
 &

 6
.

• 
D

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

d
u

c
a

te
s
 s

c
h

o
o

lc
h

ild
re

n
, 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
b

o
u

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

• 
P

ro
v
id

in
g

 b
re

a
s
t 

fe
e

d
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 n

e
w

 m
o

th
e

rs
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

b
re

a
s
t 

fe
e

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
.

• 
M

is
s
io

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 E

a
ti
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 3
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 b

y
 d

ie
ti
c
ia

n
s

• 
C

o
o

k
e

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
in

 S
u

re
 S

ta
rt

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 e

d
u

c
a

te
 p

a
re

n
ts

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 

b
u

y
 a

n
d

 c
o

o
k
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 f

o
o

d
.

• 
C

o
o

k
 C

lu
b

 (
2

w
k
s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

if
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 b

id
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l)

• 
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 –

 E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
in

 c
lu

s
te

rs
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.

Page 24



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I 
5
7

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
(5

-1
6
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
) 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 h

ig
h
-q

u
a
lit

y
 

P
E

 a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

 (
S

c
h
o
o
l 

s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 c

lu
b
 l
in

k
s
 

s
u
rv

e
y
)

7
5
.0

%
9
0
.0

%
-

8
7
.0

%
-

-
-

8
7
%

 (
0
9
/1

0
)

G
R

E
E

N
(0

9
/1

0
)

2
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

ile

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
S

lo
u
g
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

f 
8
7
%

 i
s
 a

 5
%

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
8
2
%

 a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
7
%

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 1

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
8
6
%

 

p
la

c
in

g
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

n
d
 b

e
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

.

N
I 
5
9
 

lo
c
a
l

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

In
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
w

it
h
in

 7
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 

7
8
.7

%

2
0
0
7
/0

8

8
0
.0

%
8
0
.0

%
7
5
.5

%
7
6
.4

%
7
5
.5

%
7
3
.3

%
6
9
.8

%
R

e
d

(0
9
/1

0
) 

2
n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile

3
rd

 b
e
s
t 
in

 

S
N

 G
ro

u
p

(0
9
/1

0
) 

S
N

 

v
a
lu

e
 i
s
 

6
7
.7

%
. 
E

n
g
 

v
a
lu

e
 i
s
 

6
7
.1

%
.

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
tr

ie
s
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 

a
re

 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

a
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
, 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
's

 n
e
e
d
s
. 
T

th
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
u
g
u
re

 i
s
 a

t 
6
9
.8

%
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 b

e
lo

w
 7

0
%

 a
n
d
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
0
%

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

S
lo

u
g
h
's

 l
o
w

e
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
5
-0

6
. 

N
I 
7
2

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 

p
o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 

th
e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

S
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
,

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y
 

P
S

A
 1

0

3
7
.1

%
4
7
.0

%
4
9
.0

%
4
6
.3

%
 (

S
u
m

m
e
r 

0
9
)

-
-

-
4
8
.1

%
 (

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

G
R

E
E

N
(0

9
/1

0
)

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

1
1
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 

1
1
 S

N
 

G
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d

2
0
0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
S

lo
u
g
h
 L

A
’s

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
4
8
.1

%
 i
s
 a

 

1
.8

%
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r’
s
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
4
6
.3

%
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 

o
u
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
5
%

 b
y
 1

.3
%

. 
A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
, 
th

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 a
ls

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 o

v
e
r 

1
6
0
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 7

.9
%

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
5
6
%

 a
n
d
 

p
la

c
e
d
 1

1
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 o

u
r 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 G
ro

u
p
. 
R

a
n
k
e
d
 1

3
7
th

 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
’s

 w
h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 

C
o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
: 
T

h
e
 S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
r’
s
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
te

n
s
if
ie

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fo

c
u
s
 

o
n
 s

u
re

 s
ta

rt
 a

n
d
 g

re
a
te

r 
ta

rg
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
. 

Page 25



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I 
7
3

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

(T
h
re

s
h
o
ld

) 
P

S
A

 1
0

-
7
7
.0

%
7
9
.0

%
6
7
%

 (
S

u
m

m
e
r 

0
9
)

-
-

-
7
1
%

 (
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

R
E

D
(0

9
/1

0
)

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

7
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 

in
 o

u
r 

S
N

 

G
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d

2
0
0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 o

n
c
e
 a

 y
e
a
r.

  
S

lo
u
g
h
’s

 

2
0
1
0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
7
1
%

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 4

%
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
6
7
%

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
w

o
 o

f 
o
u
r 

h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 b

o
y
c
o
tt
e
d
 t
h
e
 

S
A

T
's

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 2
0
1
0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 3

%
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 o

f 
7
4
%

 a
n
d
 

2
%

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 o

f 
7
3
%

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 w

e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 

th
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
5
%

. 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
 s

h
o
w

 a
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
e
a
rs

. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
la

c
e
n
c
y
 b

u
t 
n
e
w

 v
ig

o
u
r 

in
 i
n
te

n
s
if
y
in

g
 

th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 

le
a
rn

in
g
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
. 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
tr

a
c
k
in

g
 

a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 p

u
p
il 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 t
h
e
 j
u
d
ic

io
u
s
 u

s
e
 

o
f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
1
 t
o
 1

 t
u
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

u
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 s

N
I 
7
5

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

A
*-

C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 

(T
h
re

s
h
o
ld

) 
P

S
A

 1
0

-
6
3
.2

%
6
4
.5

%
5
9
.3

%
-

-
-

6
3
.1

%
 (

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

G
R

E
E

N
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

fo
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

0
9
/1

0

R
a
n
k
e
d
 2

n
d
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
 

fo
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
S

lo
u
g
h
 L

A
’s

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 6

3
.1

%
 i
s
 a

 3
.8

%
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r’
s
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
5
9
.3

%
 a

n
d
 i
s
 9

.7
%

 a
b
o
v
e
 

2
0
1
0
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
5
3
.4

%
. 
It
’s

 a
ls

o
 0

.4
%

 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

6
2
%

. 
S

lo
u
g
h
 L

A
 i
s
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 1

4
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
la

c
in

g
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 

a
n
d
 2

n
d
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 o

u
r 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 G
ro

u
p
. 

N
I 
8
7

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 

D
C

S
F

 D
S

O

-
-

-
3
.5

%

(2
0
0
8
/0

9
)

3
.1

%

T
e
rm

 1

3
.4

%

T
e
rm

 2

-
2
.5

%
 (

2
0
0
9
/1

0
)

G
R

E
E

N
g
re

e
n

1
s
t 
o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 

S
N

 G
ro

u
p
 

fo
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 
S

lo
u
g
h
's

 2
0
1
0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
2
.5

%
 i
s
 a

 1
%

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
3
.5

%
. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 2

0
1
0
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

to
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
n
d
 i
s
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 3

rd
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 o
u
t 
o
f 

1
5
2
 L

A
's

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
t 
o
u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
.7

%
.

N
I 
9
2

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 

P
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 
P

S
A

 

1
1

-
3
2
.5

%
3
0
.0

%
3
6
.9

%
 (

s
u
m

m
e
r 

0
9
)

-
-

-
3
5
.9

%
 (

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

R
E

D
(0

9
/1

0
)

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

R
a
n
k
e
d
 8

th
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
 

fo
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 o

n
c
e
 a

 y
e
a
r.

  
S

lo
u
g
h
 L

A
’s

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 g

a
p
 o

f 
3
5
.9

%
 i
s
 a

 1
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r’
s
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
3
6
.9

%
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 g

a
p
 i
s
 3

.2
%

 w
id

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
a
p
 o

f 
3
2
.7

%
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e
d
 8

th
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 o

u
r 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 

G
ro

u
p
. 
 R

a
n
k
e
d
 1

3
7
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
’s

 w
h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 

q
u
a
rt

ile
. 
T

h
e
 g

a
p
 i
s
 1

.7
%

 w
id

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 0

9
/1

0
 g

a
p
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
4
.2

%
. 
T

h
e
 

S
u
re

 S
ta

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
ts

 e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

ri
v
in

g
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fo

c
u
s
. 
E

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 a

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 E

Y
F

S
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 d

u
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 

M
o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

Y
F

S
 s

ta
g
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s

m
o
re

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
.

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 o
n

c
e

 a
 y

e
a

r.
  

S
lo

u
g

h
’s

 2
0

1
0

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

7
1

%
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 4

%
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
6

7
%

.

T
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 h
ig

h
e

r 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
it
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

w
o

 o
f 

o
u

r 
h

ig
h

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 b

o
y
c
o

tt
e

d
 t

h
e

 S
A

T
's

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.
 2

0
1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

is
 3

%
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 o
f 

7
4

%
 a

n
d

 2
%

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
s
 o

f 
7

3
%

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 w
e

ll 
b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
7

5
%

. 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0

 s
h

o
w

 a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

c
e

n
c
y
 b

u
t 

n
e

w
 v

ig
o

u
r 

in
 i
n

te
n

s
if
y
in

g
 t

h
e

 

fo
c
u

s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 t

e
a

c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

, 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 t
e

a
c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

. 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

tr
a

c
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 p

u
p

il 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 t
h

e
 j
u

d
ic

io
u

s
 u

s
e

 o
f 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
, 

1
 t

o
 1

 t
u

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 u

s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

a
d

v
a

n
c
e

d
 s

k
ill

s
 t

e
a

c
h

e
rs

.

Page 26



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I 
9
3

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

P
S

A
 1

1

-
8
6
.0

%
8
7
.0

%
7
9
%

 (
s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
)

-
-

-
8
4
%

 (
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

R
e
d

(0
9
/1

0
)

3
rd

 Q
u
a
rt

ile

R
a
n
k
e
d
 9

th
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
 

fo
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
S

lo
u
g
h
's

 2
0
1
0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
8
4
%

 i
s
 a

 5
%

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
7
9
%

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 o

f 
8
4
%

. 
 R

a
n
k
e
d
 9

th
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 o

u
r 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 G
ro

u
p
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 1

%
 b

e
lo

w
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
5
%

. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
, 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
. 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
tr

a
c
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
tt
in

g
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 p

u
p
il 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 t
h
e
 j
u
d
ic

io
u
s
 u

s
e
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
1
 t
o
 1

 t
u
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 u

s
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 s

k
ill

s
 

te
a
c
h
e
rs

.

N
I 
9
4

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 

M
a
th

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 

1
 a

n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 P
S

A
 

1
1

-
8
1
.5

%
8
3
.0

%
7
4
.0

%
-

-
-

8
1
%

 (
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

G
R

E
E

N
(0

9
/1

0
)

3
rd

 Q
u
a
rt

ile

R
a
n
k
e
d
 9

th
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
 

fo
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
S

lo
u
g
h
's

 2
0
1
0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
8
1
%

 i
s
 a

 7
%

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
7
4
%

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h

e

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
8
3
%

 a
n
d
 i
n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
8
1
%

.

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 1

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
0
%

.

N
I 
9
9

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 

le
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 P
S

A
 1

1

-
N

o
 T

a
rg

e
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 

th
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r

N
o
 T

a
rg

e
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 

th
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

 (
S

e
p
 0

9
)

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
n
n
u
a
l

T
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d

n
/a

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s
 (

e
.g

. 
O

N
E

 c
h
ild

 f
o
r 

K
S

2
, 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
) 

a
n
d
 a

re
 

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

L
A

C
 w

h
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
a
m

 y
e
a
r.

 O
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

to
p
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 m
a
k
e
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
e
t 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
w

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

in
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 i
n
 a

 n
o
n
-

p
re

d
ic

ti
v
e
 f
a
s
h
io

n
.

N
I

1
0
0

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 

le
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 P
S

A
 1

1

-
N

o
 T

a
rg

e
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 

th
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r

N
o
 T

a
rg

e
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 

th
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

 (
S

e
p
 0

9
)

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
n
n
u
a
l

T
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d

n
/a

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s
 (

e
.g

. 
O

N
E

 c
h
ild

 f
o
r 

K
S

2
, 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
) 

a
n
d
 a

re
 

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

L
A

C
 w

h
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
a
m

 y
e
a
r.

 O
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

to
p
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 m
a
k
e
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
e
t 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
w

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

in
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 i
n
 a

 n
o
n
-

p
re

d
ic

ti
v
e
 f
a
s
h
io

n
.

Page 27



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I

1
0
1

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

5
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 (

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

s
) 

P
S

A
 1

1

-
N

o
 T

a
rg

e
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 

th
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r

N
o
 T

a
rg

e
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 

th
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r

9
.1

%
 (

S
e
p
 0

9
)

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
n
n
u
a
l

T
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d

n
/a

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s
 (

e
.g

. 
S

E
V

E
N

 c
h
ild

re
n
 f
o
r 

K
S

4
, 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
) 

a
n
d
 a

re
 

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

L
A

C
 w

h
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
a
m

 y
e
a
r.

 O
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

to
p
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 m
a
k
e
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
e
t 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
w

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 c

a
re

 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 c

o
m

e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
ft
 c

a
re

 -
 s

o
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 c
a
n
 

o
n
ly

 b
e
 s

e
t 
in

 a
 n

o
n
-p

re
d
ic

ti
v
e
 f
a
s
h
io

n
. 
H

u
g
e
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 

ta
rg

e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 a

t 
K

S
 4

, 
s
in

c
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

is
 c

o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 a

rr
iv

e
d
 u

n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 a

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
is

it
e
 G

C
S

E
s
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 E

n
g
lis

h
. 
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
t.

N
I

1
0
2

(a
)

 2
4
%

1
9
.5

%
tb

c
2
7
.8

%
 (

S
u
m

m
e
r 

0
9
)

-
-

-
2
1
%

 (
s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

G
R

E
E

N
s
e
c
o
n
d
 

q
u
a
rt

ile

0
9
/1

0

6
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 
8
 

in
 o

u
r 

S
N

 

g
ro

u
p
 (

3
 o

f 

o
u
r 

S
N

 

re
s
u
lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
).

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 
S

lo
u
g
h
's

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 K

S
2
 F

S
M

 g
a
p
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
2
1
%

 h
a
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r’
s
 g

a
p
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

2
7
.8

%
. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 S

lo
u
g
h
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

m
o
s
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 L

A
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
s
 t
h
e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t
w

o
 o

f 
o
u
r 

h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

F
S

M
 t
h
a
t 
b
o
y
c
o
tt
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
e
s
ts

. 
S

lo
u
g
h
’s

 F
S

M
 g

a
p
 i
s
 i
n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r’
s
 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 g

a
p
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
g
a
p
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
2
6
%

. 
 R

a
n
k
e
d
 

5
0
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 p
la

c
in

g
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e
d
 j
o
in

t 
6
th

 

o
u
t 
o
f 
8
 i
n
 o

u
r 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 g
ro

u
p
 (

3
 o

f 
o
u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 

re
s
u
lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
).

 S
lo

u
g
h
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

u
r 

L
A

A
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
2
1
%

.

S
l

h
’

2
0
0
9
/1

0
K

S
4

F
S

M
fi

f
3

%
i

1
%

id
h

l

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
e
e
rs

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
s
 a

)2
 a

n
d
 b

)4
 P

S
A

 

1
1

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 

S
lo

u
g

h
's

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 K
S

2
 F

S
M

 g
a

p
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
2

1
%

 h
a

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r’
s

g
a

p
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
2

7
.8

%
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 

in
 S

lo
u

g
h

 p
la

c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

o
r 

m
o

s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 L

A
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
s
 t

h
e

y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

 t
w

o
 o

f 
o

u
r 

h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
it
h

 l
o

w
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 F

S
M

 t
h

a
t 

b
o
y
c
o

tt
e

d
 t

h
e

 t
e

s
ts

. 
S

lo
u

g
h

’s
 F

S
M

 g
a

p
 i
s
 i
n

lin
e

 w
it
h

 

th
is

 y
e

a
r’
s
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 g

a
p

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 

g
a

p
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
2

6
%

. 
 R

a
n

k
e

d
 

5
0

th
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

la
c
in

g
 S

lo
u

g
h

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e

d
 j
o

in
t 

6
th

 o
u

t 
o

f 
8

 i
n

 

o
u

r 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 g

ro
u

p
 (

3
 o

f 
o

u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 

b
e

e
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
).

 S
lo

u
g

h
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

u
r 

L
A

A
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
1

%
.

S
lo

u
g

h
’s

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 K
S

4
 F

S
M

 g
a

p
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
3

5
%

 i
s
 1

.5
%

 w
id

e
r 

th
a

n
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r’
s
 g

a
p

 

fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

3
3

.5
%

. 
T

h
e

 F
S

M
 g

a
p

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 7
%

 w
id

e
r 

th
a

n
 E

n
g

la
n

d
's

 g
a

p
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
2

8
%

 

a
n

d
 1

%
 w

id
e

r 
th

a
n

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t'
s
 g

a
p

 o
f 

3
4

%
. 

R
a

n
k
e

d
 1

2
7

th
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

la
c
in

g
 

S
lo

u
g

h
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
tt

o
m

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e

d
 1

1
th

 o
u

t 
o

f 
1

1
 i
n

 o
u

r 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs

g
ro

u
p

. 
S

lo
u

g
h

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 2
%

 a
b

o
v
e

 o
u

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 g

a
p

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
3

3
%

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
F

S
M

 a
t 

K
S

4
. 

T
h

e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
K

S
4

 p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

 n
o

 F
S

M
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 4

%
 w

h
e

re
a

s
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 F
S

M
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 2

%
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 F

S
M

 g
a

p
 w

id
e

n
in

g
. 

A
s
 o

u
r 

fo
u

r 
g

ra
m

m
a

r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

w
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 F

S
M

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

K
S

4
 

p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

 n
o

 F
S

M
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 6

8
%

, 
ra

n
k
in

g
 S

lo
u

g
h

 1
0

th
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 

K
S

4
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 F
S

M
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 3

3
%

, 
ra

n
k
in

g
 S

lo
u

g
h

 4
1

s
t 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
.

C
o

rr
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

N
I 

1
0

2
b

:

A
n

y
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

e
m

p
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
o

u
r 

p
u

p
ils

 o
n

 F
re

e
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a

ls
 (

F
S

M
) 

a
re

 m
a

k
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ra

n
k
in

g
 o

f 
4

1
s
t 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
5

2
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

A
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
im

e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

g
ro

u
n

d
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

la
c
e

n
c
y
. 

T
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

p
p

in
g

 i
ts

 g
a

m
e

 i
n

 i
n

te
n

s
if
y
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

ra
is

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
 o

n
 f

re
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
. 

R
e

c
e

n
tl
y
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 O

fs
te

d
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
S

lo
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 g
o

o
d

 o
r 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

to
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 i
n

 a
 s

e
n

io
r 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
to

 w
o

rk
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
ly

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

A
ls

o
 d

a
ta

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

o
 d

ri
ll 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e

ir
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
e

a
c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

.

W
h

ile
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

fo
r

th
e

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
w

ill
b

e
k
ic

k
in

g
in

w
it
h

in
th

e
s
h

o
rt

te
rm

it
w

ill

Page 28



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I

1
0
2

(b
)

3
7
.0

%
3
1
.0

%
tb

c
3
3
.5

%
 (

S
u
m

m
e
r 

0
9
)

-
-

-
3
5
%

 (
s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

R
E

D
(0

9
/1

0
)

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

1
1
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 

1
1
 S

N
 

G
ro

u
p

N
I

1
1
0

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 P

S
A

 1
4
 P

la
c
e
 

H
o
ld

e
r

7
3
.7

%

2
0
0
8
/0

9

8
3
.7

%
tb

a
7
7
.7

%
-

-
-

S
u
rv

e
y
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

N
o
t

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
1
s
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 

it
s
 S

N
 g

ro
u
p
 

0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 T
e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

s
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 6

.7
%

 f
ro

m
 7

1
.0

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
3
 n

e
w

 

w
e
ig

h
ti
n
g
) 

to
 7

7
.7

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
4
).

  
T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
, 

ra
n
k
e
d
 7

th
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 (
o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
s
) 

a
n
d
 1

s
t 
(o

u
t 
o
f 
1
1
) 

in
 o

u
r 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 1

%
 b

e
lo

w
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

7
8
.7

%
. 
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

N
I

1
1
1

S
a
fe

r

S
lo

u
g
h

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 

a
g
e
d
 1

0
 –

 1
7
 

2
0
4
0
 R

a
te

 

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

a
g
e
d
 1

0
-

1
7
 P

N
C

 

D
a
ta

 2
0
0
5

1
9
2
0
 R

a
te

 

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-
O

v
e
ra

ll 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

1
6
5
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 

(a
p
p
ro

x
 1

3
6
0
.9

 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
)

1
3

E
n
tr

a
n
ts

2
1
 E

n
tr

a
n
ts

1
7
 E

n
tr

a
n
ts

O
v
e
ra

ll 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

6
0
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 L

O
W

: 
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 i
s
 6

5
 f
ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
6
5
 o

r 
le

s
s
 

e
n
tr

a
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
d
a
ta

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 d

if
fe

r 
to

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
c
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 n
a
m

e
ly

 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
Y

R
D

 (
Y

o
u
th

 

R
e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 D

is
p
o
s
a
ls

),
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
il 

c
lin

ic
 

s
y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 r
e
p
ri
m

a
n
d
 o

r 
fi
n
a
l 
w

a
rn

in
g
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 T

ri
a
g
e
 

w
o
rk

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 Y

O
T

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
e
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
a
 Y

R
D

 a
re

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
fi
lt
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
m

 i
n
to

 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 a
c
ti
v
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 y

o
u
th

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
u
s
e
 

o
f 
th

e
 Y

IS
P

 a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ll 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
is

 

a
re

a
.

S
lo

u
g
h
’s

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 K

S
4
 F

S
M

 g
a
p
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
3
5
%

 i
s
 1

.5
%

 w
id

e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 g

a
p
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
3
3
.5

%
. 
T

h
e
 F

S
M

 g
a
p
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 7

%
 w

id
e
r 

th
a
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
's

 

g
a
p
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
2
8
%

 a
n
d
 1

%
 w

id
e
r 

th
a
n
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t's

 g
a
p
 o

f 
3
4
%

. 
R

a
n
k
e
d
 

1
2
7
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 p
la

c
in

g
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e
d
 1

1
th

 o
u
t 

o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 o

u
r 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 g
ro

u
p
. 
S

lo
u
g
h
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 2

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 g

a
p
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
3
%

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

N
I 
1
0
2
b
:

A
n
y
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
e
m

p
e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
o
u
r 

p
u
p
ils

 o
n
 F

re

S
lo

u
g

h
in

th
e

b
o

tt
o

m
q

u
a

rt
ile

a
n

d
p

la
c
e

d
1

1
th

o
u

t
o

f
1

1
in

o
u

r
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs

g
ro

u
p

. 
S

lo
u

g
h

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 2
%

 a
b

o
v
e

 o
u

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 g

a
p

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
3

3
%

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
F

S
M

 a
t 

K
S

4
. 

T
h

e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
K

S
4

 p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

 n
o

 F
S

M
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 4

%
 w

h
e

re
a

s
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 F
S

M
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 2

%
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 F

S
M

 g
a

p
 w

id
e

n
in

g
. 

A
s
 o

u
r 

fo
u

r 
g

ra
m

m
a

r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

w
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 F

S
M

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

K
S

4
 

p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

 n
o

 F
S

M
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 6

8
%

, 
ra

n
k
in

g
 S

lo
u

g
h

 1
0

th
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 

K
S

4
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 F
S

M
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 3

3
%

, 
ra

n
k
in

g
 S

lo
u

g
h

 4
1

s
t 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
.

C
o

rr
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

N
I 

1
0

2
b

:

A
n

y
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

e
m

p
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
o

u
r 

p
u

p
ils

 o
n

 F
re

e
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a

ls
 (

F
S

M
) 

a
re

 m
a

k
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ra

n
k
in

g
 o

f 
4

1
s
t 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
5

2
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

A
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
im

e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

g
ro

u
n

d
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

la
c
e

n
c
y
. 

T
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

p
p

in
g

 i
ts

 g
a

m
e

 i
n

 i
n

te
n

s
if
y
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

ra
is

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
 o

n
 f

re
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
. 

R
e

c
e

n
tl
y
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 O

fs
te

d
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
S

lo
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 g
o

o
d

 o
r 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

to
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 i
n

 a
 s

e
n

io
r 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
to

 w
o

rk
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
ly

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

A
ls

o
 d

a
ta

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

o
 d

ri
ll 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e

ir
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
e

a
c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

.

W
h

ile
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
ill

 b
e

 k
ic

k
in

g
 i
n

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 i
t 

w
ill

 

ta
k
e

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
o

 f
e

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.

Page 29



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I

1
1
7

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(N

E
E

T
) 

P
S

A
 1

4

5
.3

%

F
e
b
 0

8

4
.3

%
S

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d

N
o
v
 6

.6
%

D
e
c
 6

.1
%

J
a
n
 5

.2
%

O
v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
  
6
.0

%

5
.8

%
8
.0

%
5
.6

%
N

o
v
 5

.5
%

D
e
c
 4

.5
%

J
a
n
 4

.7
%

O
v
e
ra

ll 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 

ra
te

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

4
.9

%

n
/a

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

A
L
 N

E
E

T
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

S
lo

u
g
h
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 i
s
 4

.9
%

 (
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
N

o
v
 5

.5
; 
D

e
c
 4

.5
 a

n
d
 J

a
n
 4

.7
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

1
.1

%
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r'
s
 r

a
te

 o
f 
6
.0

%
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
’s

 w
e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
.4

%
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
ra

te
 w

it
h
in

 B
e
rk

s
h
ir
e
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

is
 0

.6
%

 a
b
o
v
e
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.3

%
.

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 l
o
w

 r
a
te

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 

e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
S

lo
u
g
h
’s

 N
E

E
T

 r
a
te

 w
ill

b
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
le

a
s
e
d
.

N
I

1
2
1

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

M
o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 

c
ir
c
u
la

to
ry

 d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 a

t 

a
g
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

7
5
 

L
a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 

is
 9

2
.6

8
 f
o
r 

C
Y

 2
0
0
8
.

la
te

s
t 
3
y
r 

d
a
ta

9
7
.1

3
(2

0
0

5
-2

0
0
7
)

6
8
.7

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-
L
a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 

9
2
.6

8
 f
o
r 

C
Y

 

2
0
0
8
. 
 l
a
te

s
t 
3
y
r 

d
a
ta

 9
7
.1

3
(2

0
0
5

-

2
0
0
7
)

-
-

-
-

R
E

D
A

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
  
is

 

8
0
.7

3

A
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 

7
0
.8

8

L
O

W
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
T

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 d

a
ta

 b
y
 t
h
e
 O

N
S

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 C

L
G

 H
u
b
 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
5
-2

0
0
7
 i
s
 9

7
.1

3
, 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

  
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 b
e
in

g
 9

2
.6

8
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
1
1
7
.2

1
 a

n
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
. 
 A

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
re

n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 

te
n
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
fl
u
c
tu

a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
  
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 v

a
s
c
u
la

r 

ri
s
k
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
a
ls

o
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 P

h
a
rm

a
c
ie

s
.

N
I

1
2
3

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

1
6
+

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 r

a
te

 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 P

S
A

 1
8
- 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
m

o
k
e
rs

 

q
u
it
ti
n
g

7
0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

6
7
4
 a

c
tu

a
l 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

o
f 
s
m

o
k
e
rs

 

q
u
it
ti
n
g

7
0
8
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

7
7
3

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
m

o
k
e
rs

q
u
it
ti
n
g

-
7
2
3
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-
-

-
-

G
R

E
E

N
-

R
a
n
k
e
d
 3

rd
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
6
 

IP
F

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r

g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

la
te

s
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 

(0
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
8

- 3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
8
)

D
a
ta

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 h

u
b
, 
a
w

a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 H

e
a
lt
h
. 
 T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d
 t
o
 a

n
 a

b
s
o
lu

te
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
q
u
it
te

rs
. 
 G

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

ty
p
if
ie

d
 b

y
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fo

u
r 

w
e
e
k
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 w

h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 N

H
S

 S
to

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

Page 30



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I

1
2
4

lo
c
a
l

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
- 

P
e
o
p
le

 

w
it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 -

"%
 o

f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 L
T

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

w
h
o
 "

h
a
d
 e

n
o
u
g
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

fr
o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
(s

)"

 0
7
/0

8
 

o
u
tt
u
rn

w
a
s

7
6
.1

9
%

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

th
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

d
a
ta

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

T
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 

d
a
ta

 n
o
t 

y
e
t

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

-
-

7
0
%

(0
9
/1

0
)

-
-

-
-

n
/a

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 i
s
 7

0
%

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 

d
ro

p
 f
ro

m
 7

6
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
. 
 S

lo
u
g
h
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
u
lly

  
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

. 

N
I

1
3
0

(a
)

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 c
lie

n
ts

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
D

ir
e
c
t 
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 

a
n
d
 I
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

) 

D
H

 D
S

O
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r 

p
lu

s
 c

a
re

rs
 o

n
 d

ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts

5
.3

4
%

0
7
/0

8

(a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

to
 n

e
w

 

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 

fr
o
m

0
9
/1

0
)

1
2
6
5
(t

b
c
)u

s

e
rs

 o
r 

3
0
%

 

o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

-
5
4
3
 u

s
e
rs

 o
r 

1
2
.9

%
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(3
2
1
5
) 

a
n
d
 p

lu
s
 

9
9
9
 c

a
re

rs
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 

4
2
1
4
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
8
3

5
0
8

7
6
8

  
 3

3
.9

%
  
(1

1
9
1
 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
)

G
R

E
E

N
T

h
ir
d
 

q
u
a
rt

ile

0
9
/1

0

-
S

ta
tu

s
: 
G

re
e
n
: 
E

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 L

A
A

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
0
%

. 
O

n
e
 t
h
ir
d
 t
h
a
t 
is

 3
3
.9

%
(1

1
9
1
) 

o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
, 
a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 v

ia
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
T

h
is

 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
3
0
%

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

o
f 
1
1
9
 %

 f
ro

m
  
5
4
3
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
o
 1

1
9
1
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

N
I

1
3
5

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

C
a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
a
re

r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

2
1
%

 (
6
2
9
 

c
a
re

rs
)

(H
u
b
 f
ig

u
re

 

is
 2

0
.3

2
)

L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
8
%

(a
p
p
ro

x
 9

0
0
 

c
a
re

rs

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

in
te

rn
a
l

ta
rg

e
t

3
2
%

(a
p
p
ro

x

1
0
3
0
)

-
3
2
%

 :
 1

0
2
9
 

c
a
re

rs
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 d

iv
id

e
d
 

b
y
 3

2
1
5
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d
 u

s
e
rs

8
9

3
5
5

6
6
6

3
1
.5

%
G

R
E

E
N

T
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 

0
9
/1

0

-
S

ta
tu

s
: 
G

re
e
n
: 
E

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 L

A
A

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
2
8
%

. 
 A

t 
a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
8
6
7
 

c
a
re

rs
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
 c

a
re

rs
’ 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 

3
1
.5

%
.

Page 31



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I

1
4
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

c
o
h
e
s
io

n

F
a
ir
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 P

S
A

 1
5

6
1
.4

%
6
5
.0

%
-

b
ie

n
n
ia

l
-

-
-

D
e
le

te
d

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

L
o
w

e
s
t

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 2

0
0
8
-

2
0
1
0

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
(P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
-t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 b
ie

n
n
ie

l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 s

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r 

0
9
/1

0
 w

ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 0

8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

) 
S

lo
u
g
h
's

 o
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 6

1
.4

%
 

w
h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
 T

h
e
 S

E
 

R
e
g
io

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
s
 7

5
.8

%
 w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
s
 7

2
.4

%
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
: 
E

a
c
h
 P

D
G

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 k

e
y
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
;

T
o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

0
0
8
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 b

y
 R

a
c
e
, 
R

e
lig

io
n
, 
A

g
e
, 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
, 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 W

a
rd

 ;
 T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
; 
S

B
C

 h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 o

f 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
 a

n
d
 w

ill
  
id

e
n
ti
fy

 e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
fr

o
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

 b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
n
g
th

; 
S

B
C

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
ta

ff
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
  
D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 

9
 J

u
ly

, 
th

e
m

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
  
“m

y
th

 b
u
s
ti
n
g
” 

N
I

1
4
4

S
a
fe

r

S
lo

u
g
h

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 u
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 o

rd
e
r 

o
r 

lic
e
n
c
e
 P

S
A

 1
6

3
9
.0

%
4
5
%

 o
f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l

-
4
5
.0

%
4
4
.5

%
 

(2
3
/4

3
)

n
/a

5
4
.9

%
 

(2
8
/5

1
)

N
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

c
o
lle

c
te

d

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

N
o
t

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

-
-

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 

N
I

1
5
2

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 P
S

A
 8

1
1
.5

%

0
6
/0

7

1
0
.5

%

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic

in
d
ic

a
to

r

T
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 

b
e

re
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

-
-

-
-

-
-

A
m

b
e
r

-
-

L
O

W
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 s
o
u
rc

e
 i
s
 D

W
P

-r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 w
it
h
 

a
n
 8

 m
o
n
th

 t
im

e
 l
a
g
. 
D

a
ta

 i
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 b
u
t 
w

it
h
 

a
 t
im

e
 l
a
g
. 
 F

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

J
a
n
-M

a
r 

2
0
0
9
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
d
ro

p
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 0

8
/0

9
 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

N
I

1
5
5

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 

h
o
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 (

g
ro

s
s
) 

P
S

A
 2

0

0
(G

o
s
e

h
a
v
e

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

b
a
s
e
lin

e

a
s
 0

)

1
2
8

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
4
8
4

-
2
2
0
  

(a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
)

4
1

6
1
2

1
1
4
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

(5
5
 i
n
 Q

tr
 4

)

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
0

N
I

1
8
7

-
G

R
E

E
N

-
-

-
T

a
c
k
lin

g
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 –

 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

h
o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 l
o
w

 e
n
e
rg

y
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 D

e
fr

a
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

-
-

-
-

<
3
5
 =

 7
%

>
6
5
 =

 4
1
%

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

-

Page 32



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I

1
6
3

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
 

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

P
S

A
 2

6
0
.5

%

A
P

S
 2

0
0
6
 

(u
p
d
a
te

d

2
2
.0

1
.0

9
)

6
4
.2

%

3
.7

%

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
v
e
r

b
a
s
e
lin

e

-
2
0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

-
-

-
-

n
/a

-
-

H
IG

H
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
2
0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 L

a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 d

a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 (

6
7
.0

9
%

) 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
6
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
6
0
.5

%
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 
b
y
 n

e
a
rl
y
 6

%
. 
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 i
n
to

 S
lo

u
g
h
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 b

y
 n

e
w

 

h
o
u
s
in

g
.

N
I

1
6
4

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

P
S

A
 2

3
7
%

 A
P

S
 

2
0
0
6

(u
p
d
a
te

d

2
2
.0

1
.0

9
)

4
0
.2

%

3
.2

%

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
v
e
r

b
a
s
e
lin

e

-
2
0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

-
-

-
-

n
/a

-
-

H
IG

H
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
 2

0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 L

a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 d

a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

4
4
.5

%
) 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
6
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
3
6
.8

%
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 
b
y
 6

.3
%

. 
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 i
n
to

 S
lo

u
g
h
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 b

y
 

n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

N
I

1
7
1

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 &

 

s
k
ill

s

V
A

T
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 -
 n

e
w

 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 

1
6
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r

6
1
.3

%

a
v
e
ra

g
e

2
0
0
5
 -

 

2
0
0
7
 i
n
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

b
ir
th

s

d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y
 

1
0
 0

0
0
 

p
o
p

6
6
.7

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

-
-

-
-

-
-

n
/a

-
R

a
n
k
e
d
 2

n
d
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
6
 

IP
F

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r

g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

la
te

s
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 

(0
1
/0

1
/2

0
0
7

- 3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
7
)

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
 D

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 B

E
R

R
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
 D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 d

a
ta

 w
a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

in
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 0
9
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
  
6
9
.1

  
n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

6
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r.

  
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
1
.3

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 2

0
0
5
-

2
0
0
7
.

N
I

1
7
5

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

y
 p

u
b
lic

 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 

c
y
c
lin

g

a
) 

6
1
%

2
0
0
6
/7

b
)

1
,7

7
0
,8

1
8

2
0
0
6
/0

7

a
) 

6
7
%

 -
-

a
) 

7
7
%

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

b
) 

2
,7

8
1
,9

8
8

a
) 

-

b
) 

7
3
6
1
5
7

a
) 

-

b
) 

7
2
4
,6

8
5

n
/a

-
G

R
E

E
N

-
-

H
IG

H
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 r

e
m

in
s
 h

ig
h
, 
w

h
ile

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 g

e
t 
to

 H
e
a
th

ro
w

 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 i
s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
t-

tu
rn

 d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

F
ir
s
t 
B

e
e
lin

e
 g

ro
s
s
e
d
 u

p
 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

o
p
e
ra

to
rs

. 
N

o
 

d
a
ta

 y
e
t 
fo

r 
q
tr

 3
.

N
I

1
7
7

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

L
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 

4
,3

2
6
,2

0
0

tr
ip

s

2
0
0
6
/0

7

4
,7

0
1
,8

9
5

tr
ip

s

-
4
9
0
6
2
8
7

1
.2

8
M

1
2
7
9
9
0
5

n
/a

-
G

R
E

E
N

-
-

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
t-

tu
rn

 d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

F
ir
s
t 
B

e
e
lin

e
 g

ro
s
s
e
d
 u

p
 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

o
p
e
ra

to
rs

. 
N

o
 d

a
ta

 y
e
t 
fo

r 
Q

tr
 3

.

Page 33



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
L

O
U

G
H

  
L

S
P

 L
A

A
 2

0
1

0
 -

 1
1

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 A

N
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

  
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

  
  

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t 
IP

F
 

fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

1
0
/1

1

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

1
0
/1

1

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 1

0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

N
IS

R
e
f

0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
9
/1

0
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

N
I

1
8
6

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

P
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 L

A
 a

re
a
 P

S
A

 2
7

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 

1
.5

9
%

in
c
re

a
s
e

(2
0
0
6
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 )

2
0
0
7
 d

a
ta

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

S
e
p
t 
2
0
0
9
, 

2
0
0
8
 d

a
ta

 

tb
c
. 
P

e
r 

c
a
p
it
a

C
O

2

e
m

is
s
io

n
s

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
8
/9

b
li

9
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

5
.2

1
t 
C

O
2
 

p
e
r 

h
e
a
d

-
2
0
0
8
/9

 r
e
s
u
lt
  
- 

5
.5

 t
o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 -

 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

o
p
n
 

o
f 
 1

2
5
,8

0
0
.

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
s
u
lt

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 

D
E

C
C

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
s
u
lt

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 

D
E

C
C

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 

D
E

C
C

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

2
 y

e
a
rs

 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

.

N
/A

-
-

F
ig

u
re

s
 f
ro

m
 D

E
C

C
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
o
v
e
r 

a
 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
5
 t
o
 2

0
0
8
, 

p
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 5

.9
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 t
o
 5

.5
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
. 
P

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 d

is
c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 w

ill
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 f
ig

u
re

 e
v
e
n
 m

o
re

.

N
I

1
9
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 D

e
fr

a
 

D
S

O

2
6
.1

9
%

p
ro

je
c
te

d

2
9
.0

%
-

3
0
.9

%
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
th

 q
tr

 d
a
ta

  
- 

2
9
.8

%

3
2
.3

%
3
2
.6

%
3
1
.5

%
-

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
4
th

 q
tr

 d
a
ta

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

w
a
it
 G

o
v
't 

c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
.

N
I

1
9
8

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
–
 m

o
d
e
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 

u
s
u
a
lly

 u
s
e
d
 .
  
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
y
 c

a
r

3
9
%

S
e
c
o
n
d

L
o
c
a
l

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

P
la

n
  
-

2
0
0
6
/0

7

3
5
.0

%
-

M
o
d
e
s
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e
l 

% A
g
e
 5

-1
0
 

C
a
r:

 3
9

C
a
r 

S
h
a
re

: 
3
.2

P
u
b
 T

ra
n
s
: 
1
.6

W
a
lk

in
g
: 
5
5
.2

C
y
c
lin

g
: 
0
.6

O
th

e
r:

  
0
.4

A
g
e
 1

1
-1

6

C
a
r:

 2
9

C
a
r 

S
h
a
re

: 
6
.9

P
u
b
 T

ra
n
s
: 
1
6

W
a
lk

in
g
: 
4
3

C
y
c
lin

g
: 
3

O
th

e
r:

 2
.1

O
v
e
ra

ll 
5
-1

6

C
a
r:

 3
5
.1

-
-

-
M

o
d
e
s
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e
l 
%

A
g
e
 5

-1
0
 

C
a
r:

 3
7
.9

6

C
a
r 

S
h
a
re

: 
3
.1

3

P
u
b
 T

ra
n
s
: 
1
.3

7

W
a
lk

in
g
: 
5
6
.1

6

C
y
c
lin

g
: 
0
.4

8

O
th

e
r:

  
0
.9

A
g
e
 1

1
-1

6

C
a
r:

 2
9
.7

9

C
a
r 

S
h
a
re

: 
6
.9

1

P
u
b
 T

ra
n
s
: 
9
.8

7

W
a
lk

in
g
: 
4
2
.5

3

C
y
c
lin

g
: 
3
.3

4

O
th

e
r:

 7
.5

6

O
v
e
ra

ll 
5
-1

6

C
a
r:

 3
4
.4

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
S

B
C

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

a
rd

 i
n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
tr

a
v
e
l 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 o

r 
a
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
ra

v
e
l 
p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
s
 (

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 S

T
A

R
S

) 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 c

h
o
o
s
in

g
 t
o
 

w
a
lk

/c
y
c
le

 o
r 

ta
k
e
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
 O

v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
5
 t
o
 1

6
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
y
 c

a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 0

.7
%

 f
ro

m
 3

5
.1

%
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
o
 

3
4
.4

%
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

u
r 

in
te

ra
ll 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
5
%

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
.A

t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

a
lk

in
g
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 

0
.9

6
%

 f
ro

m
 5

5
.2

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
o
 5

6
.1

6
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
 A

t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
a
t 
c
y
c
le

d
 

to
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
y
 0

.3
4
%

 f
ro

m
 3

%
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
o
 3

.3
4
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

Page 34



L
in

k
s
 t

o
 K

e
y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
/

L
A

A
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 

P
I 
N

o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a
to

r

2
0
0
9
/1

0

o
u

tt
u

rn

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

0
8
/0

9
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

 1
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

r-
J
u

n
 1

0

Q
tr

 2
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 1
0

Q
tr

 3
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 O

c
t-

D
e
c
 1

0

Q
tr

 4
/ 
E

O
Y

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 J

a
n

-

M
a
r 

1
1

C
u

rr
e
n

t

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

R
A

G

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

P
o

s
it

io
n

:

L
o

w
e
s
t

fi
g

u
re

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 
9

U
s
e
 o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

th
e
 a

d
u
lt
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

w
h
o
 s

a
y
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

u
s
e
d
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
c
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
.[
D

E
L
E

T
E

D

F
O

R
2
0
1
0
/1

1
]

4
6
.6

%
(2

0
0
9
)

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

4
7
.0

%
-

-
-

D
e
le

te
d

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
  
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 P

e
o
p
le

 

S
u
rv

e
y
. 
A

t 
a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
4
6
.6

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
 w

e
 n

o
te

 a
 d

ro
p
 f
ro

m
 

5
2
.1

%
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
. 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
9
.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
n
o
w

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

c
ti
v
e
 P

e
o
p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y
. 
 P

le
a
s
e
 

re
fe

r 
to

 p
ro

x
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
L
1
 f
o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
.

L
1

P
ro

x
y
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
N

I 

9
: 

U
s
e
 o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
.

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 

v
is

it
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

-
6
5
6
0
0
0
 

v
is

it
s

6
4
7
,7

6
5

v
is

it
s

6
4
2
, 
6
8
7
 

v
is

it
s

6
4
7
,5

6
7

v
is

it
s

6
2
8
,5

1
1

R
E

D
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
S

ta
tu

s
: 
R

e
d
: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
 6

2
8
,5

1
1
 

v
is

it
s
 f
o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
6
5
6
,0

0
0
 v

is
it
s
 s

h
o
w

s
 w

e
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
re

n
d
. 
 R

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
a
rg

e
t:
 

U
n
re

lia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 P

C
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
S

B
C

 s
e
rv

e
r 

m
o
v
e
, 
S

lo
u
g
h
 l
ib

ra
ry

 u
s
e
 i
n
 s

te
a
d
y
 d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 d
u
e
 t
o
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t,
  
R

F
ID

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
L
a
n
g
le

y
 a

n
d
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 n

o
 a

u
to

m
a
ti
c
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
o
u
n
te

rs
 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e

r

to
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 a

 p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
c
lo

s
u
re

 s
o
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 

d
e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
re

n
d
, 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

a
tu

re
 a

n
d

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
ir
tu

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

s
 u

s
e
rs

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 w

a
y
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
t.

C
o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
:

• 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 I
T

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

P
N

 p
u
b
lic

 P
C

s

• 
B

u
ild

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 l
ib

ra
ry

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

• 
M

u
s
e
u
m

 m
o
v
in

g
 i
n
 t
o
 S

lo
u
g
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

v
is

it
o
rs

• 
N

e
w

 b
ra

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
o
k
 a

n
d
 f
e
e
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

• 
T

h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
, 
d
is

p
la

y
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
to

c
k
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

• 
M

o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
r 

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

• 
S

a
te

lli
te

 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 i
n
 C

o
ln

b
ro

o
k
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
lv

e
y
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

is
it
o

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
  
  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
N

D
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t:

A
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

la
y

Page 35



L
in

k
s
 t

o
 K

e
y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
/

L
A

A
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 

P
I 
N

o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a
to

r

2
0
0
9
/1

0

o
u

tt
u

rn

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

0
8
/0

9
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

 1
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

r-
J
u

n
 1

0

Q
tr

 2
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 1
0

Q
tr

 3
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 O

c
t-

D
e
c
 1

0

Q
tr

 4
/ 
E

O
Y

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 J

a
n

-

M
a
r 

1
1

C
u

rr
e
n

t

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

R
A

G

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

P
o

s
it

io
n

:

L
o

w
e
s
t

fi
g

u
re

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
  
  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C

L
3
5

P
ro

x
y
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
N

I 

8
: 

T
h
e
 n

o
.o

f 
a
d
u
lt
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 a

t 
a
ll 

lo
c
a
l 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

ll 

s
p
o
rt

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

9
4
1
,3

4
5

2
%

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

=
9
4
5
,0

7
5
9

9
3
0
,4

2
5

v
is

it
s

9
4
9
,1

0
6

v
is

it
s

9
6
0
, 
2
6
2
 

v
is

it
s

9
9
5
,5

8
7

G
R

E
E

N
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
S

ta
tu

s
:G

re
e
n
: 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 y

e
a

r

to
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 i
s
 9

9
5
,5

8
7
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
4
5
,7

5
9
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
re

n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 g

y
m

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 o

n
 

th
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 T

ra
d
in

g
 E

s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 T

e
n
p
in

 b
o
w

lin
g
 f
a
c
ili

ty

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t:

A
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

la
y

N
I 
1
1

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

a
rt

s
.

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
(1

6
+

) 

th
a
t 
h
a
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 a

t 

le
a
s
t 
 3

 t
im

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
a
s
t 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
[D

E
L

E
T

E
D

F
O

R
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
]

-
3
9
.4

%
-

-
-

D
e
le

te
d

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

(d
e
le

te
d
)

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
A

c
ti
v
e
 P

e
o
p
le

 

S
u
rv

e
y
. 
T

h
is

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
. 
In

 0
8
/0

9
 S

lo
u
g
h
's

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

a
t 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
5
.2

%
. 
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ra
n
g
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
o
f 
2
8
.9

%
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 

6
7
.1

%
 .
 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

W
e
ll
 B

e
in

g
 -

 

A
d
d
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o

lif
e
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 t
o
 

y
e
a
rs

:

N
I 
1
4
1

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
li
v
in

g
- 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 

c
lie

n
ts

 m
o
v
e
d
 o

n
 f
ro

m
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 i
n
 a

 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 w

a
y
 a

s
 a

 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

c
lie

n
ts

 m
o
v
e
d
 o

n
.

6
8
%

(1
7
9
/2

7
2

)

7
0
%

7
5
.2

7
%

6
8
.5

0
%

7
1
.0

7
%

7
1
.8

6
%

G
R

E
E

N
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
:S

ta
tu

s
: 
G

re
e
n
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

o
v
e
s
 f
ro

m
 s

h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
 O

v
e
ra

ll 
e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 

7
1
.8

6
%

 w
h
ic

h
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
0
%

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

C
L
G

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
. 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

W
e
ll
 B

e
in

g
 -

 

A
d
d
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o

lif
e
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 t
o
 

y
e
a
rs

:

N
I 
1
4
2

O
f 
th

o
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 "

n
u

m
b

e
r

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
li
v
in

g
"

9
9
.2

0
%

9
7
%

9
9
.6

2
%

9
9
.5

4
%

9
9
.3

0
%

9
9
.3

9
%

. 
G

R
E

E
N

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
 S

ta
tu

s
: 
G

re
e
n
: 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
n
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
lie

n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 l
o
n
g
 

o
r 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 f
lo

a
ti
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 E

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

9
9
.3

9
%

 e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
7
%

.

Page 36



L
in

k
s
 t

o
 K

e
y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
/

L
A

A
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 

P
I 
N

o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a
to

r

2
0
0
9
/1

0

o
u

tt
u

rn

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

0
8
/0

9
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

 1
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

r-
J
u

n
 1

0

Q
tr

 2
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 1
0

Q
tr

 3
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 O

c
t-

D
e
c
 1

0

Q
tr

 4
/ 
E

O
Y

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 J

a
n

-

M
a
r 

1
1

C
u

rr
e
n

t

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

R
A

G

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

P
o

s
it

io
n

:

L
o

w
e
s
t

fi
g

u
re

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
  
  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 

S
k
il
ls

:

P
ro

s
p
e
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
ll

N
I 
1
4
6

A
d

u
lt

s
 w

it
h

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 

d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 i
n

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

7
.5

%

2
5
 u

s
e
rs

 o
u
t 

o
f 
a
p
p
ro

x
 3

3
2
 

to
ta

l 
L
D

 u
s
e
rs

 

k
n
o
w

n
 t
o
 

S
B

C

7
.5

%
1
.4

%
3
.4

%
5
.7

%
7
.9

0
%

G
R

E
E

N
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 H
IG

H
: 
 S

ta
tu

s
: 
G

re
e
n
: 
 T

a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.
 E

n
d
 o

f 

y
e
a
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 7

.9
%

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
.5

%
 

(T
h
is

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 2

1
/3

0
4
 c

lie
n
ts

).
  
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 m

o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 h

a
s
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
lig

n
s
 w

it
h
 t
a
rg

e
t.

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 

S
k
il
ls

:

P
ro

s
p
e
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
ll

L
2

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 e
n

ro
ll
e
d

 

d
e
c
la

ri
n

g
 a

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y

8
.2

9
%

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic

y
e
a
r 

0
8
/0

9

8
.3

%
-

-
-

-
N

/A
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 1

0
/1

1
o
u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 p
o
s
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

1
0
/1

1
(S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r)

. 

F
o
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
8
.2

9
%

 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
%

. 

S
a
fe

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
:

B
e
in

g
 S

a
fe

, 

fe
e
lin

g
 s

a
fe

N
I 
4
0

D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
D

ru
g
 u

s
e
rs

 

in
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 y

e
a
rs

.

n
o
t 
y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

4
9
9
.0

5
4
0
 (

8
.5

%
) 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t5

4
3

(9
.0

2
%

)

a
b
o
v
e

ta
rg

e
t

5
4
5
 P

D
U

 i
n
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

(8
.8

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
)

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

(F
E

B
) 

5
4
7
 

P
D

U
S

 i
n
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

(9
.2

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 

b
li

-
-

N
o
te

 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
c
u
m

u
la

tv
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 u
p
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t:

A
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

la
y

N
I

1
5
7
(a

)
0
.6

7
5
5
.0

%
7
8
.0

%
-

G
R

E
E

N
-

P
la

n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 
n
o
w

 a
b
o
lis

h
e
d
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

L
A

's
 t
o
 a

d
h
e
re

 t
o
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f
o
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 

s
e
t 
b
y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 S

B
C

 t
o
 s

e
t 
'lo

c
a
l' 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
T

ra
ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 
s
ta

tu
s
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

s
e
t 
in

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t:

A
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

la
y

N
I

1
5
7
(b

)
0
.8

3
8
8
.0

%
7
8
.0

%
-

n
/a

-
P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 
n
o
w

 a
b
o
lis

h
e
d
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

L
A

's
 t
o
 a

d
h
e
re

 t
o
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f
o
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 

s
e
t 
b
y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 S

B
C

 t
o
 s

e
t 
'lo

c
a
l' 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
T

ra
ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 
s
ta

tu
s
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

s
e
t 
in

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r.

G
R

E
E

N
 A

N
D

 B
U

IL
T

Page 37



L
in

k
s
 t

o
 K

e
y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
/

L
A

A
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 

P
I 
N

o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a
to

r

2
0
0
9
/1

0

o
u

tt
u

rn

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

0
8
/0

9
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

 1
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

r-
J
u

n
 1

0

Q
tr

 2
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 1
0

Q
tr

 3
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 O

c
t-

D
e
c
 1

0

Q
tr

 4
/ 
E

O
Y

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 J

a
n

-

M
a
r 

1
1

C
u

rr
e
n

t

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

R
A

G

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

P
o

s
it

io
n

:

L
o

w
e
s
t

fi
g

u
re

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
  
  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t:

A
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

la
y

N
I

1
5
7
(c

)
0
.8

7
8
5
.0

%
8
0
.0

%
-

n
/a

-
P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 
n
o
w

 a
b
o
lis

h
e
d
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

L
A

's
 t
o
 a

d
h
e
re

 t
o
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f
o
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 

s
e
t 
b
y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 S

B
C

 t
o
 s

e
t 
'lo

c
a
l' 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
T

ra
ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 
s
ta

tu
s
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

s
e
t 
in

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t:

A
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

la
y

N
I 
1
9
3

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 l
a
n
d
 

fi
lle

d

0
.4

5
6

-
9
.4

%
1
0
.3

%
6
.2

%
-

G
R

E
E

N
-

3
rd

 q
tr

 d
a
ta

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

w
a
it
 G

o
v
't 

c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
.

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

W
e
ll
 B

e
in

g
 -

A
d
d
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o

lif
e
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 t
o
 

y
e
a
rs

:

N
I 
6
2

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
: 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

o
v
e
s
 

D
C

S
F

 D
S

O

1
5
.4

0
%

<
1
6
%

1
4
.1

%
1
3
.6

%
9
.6

%
1
0
.1

%
G

re
e
n

(0
9
/1

0
) 

S
N

 

v
a
lu

e
 i
s
 

1
1
.3

%
. 
E

n
g
 

v
a
lu

e
 i
s
 

1
0
.9

%
.

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 
S

o
m

e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
le

, 
a
n
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l,
 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
's

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

b
e
s
t 
in

te
re

s
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
g
in

 t
o
 v

o
ic

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i
f 
th

is
 

fi
g
u
re

 w
e
re

 t
o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
v
a
lu

e
. 
It
 i
s
 t
h
e
o
re

ti
c
a
lly

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

 y
e
t 
s
ti
ll 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 w
h
a
t 
re

a
lly

 m
a
tt
e
r 

h
e
re

. 
 A

ft
e
r 

S
lo

u
g
h
's

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 
fi
g
u
re

 

in
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
la

s
t 
y
e
a
r,

 o
u
r 

fi
g
u
re

 h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 b

y
 5

%
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
n
lin

e
 

w
it
h
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
rs

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

v
a
lu

e
s
. 
A

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

S
lo

u
g
h
.

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

'S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

Page 38



L
in

k
s
 t

o
 K

e
y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
/

L
A

A
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 

P
I 
N

o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a
to

r

2
0
0
9
/1

0

o
u

tt
u

rn

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

0
8
/0

9
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

 1
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

r-
J
u

n
 1

0

Q
tr

 2
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 1
0

Q
tr

 3
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 O

c
t-

D
e
c
 1

0

Q
tr

 4
/ 
E

O
Y

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 J

a
n

-

M
a
r 

1
1

C
u

rr
e
n

t

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

R
A

G

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

P
o

s
it

io
n

:

L
o

w
e
s
t

fi
g

u
re

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
  
  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

W
e
ll
 B

e
in

g
 -

A
d
d
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o

lif
e
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 t
o
 

y
e
a
rs

:

N
I 
6
5

C
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
a
 C

h
ild

 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

a
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
 D

C
S

F
 D

S
O

1
2
.7

0
%

<
1
5
%

1
3
.6

%
1
6
.4

%
1
6
.1

%
1
8
.5

%
R

e
d

(0
9
/1

0
) 

S
N

 

v
a
lu

e
 i
s
 

1
2
.8

%
. 
E

n
g
 

v
a
lu

e
 i
s
 

1
3
.4

%
.

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
:T

h
e
 D

fE
 b

a
n
d
in

g
 a

d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
th

in
g
 

b
e
lo

w
 1

5
%

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 –

 o
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

o
u
r 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

h
ild

 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

a
s
t 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 n

o
t 
re

q
u
ir
in

g
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

C
P

P
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 m

o
re

 

c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 ‘
s
te

p
 d

o
w

n
’ 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
C

Y
P

 h
a
v
e
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 n

e
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 f
o
rm

a

C
P

P
. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 f
e
w

e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
in

g
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 C

P
P

 f
o
r 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

ta
k
e
s
 n

o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
ti
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

P
 P

la
n
s
, 
n
o
r 

o
f 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

h
ild

 b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 C

P
P

. 
S

o
, 
in

 t
h
e
o
ry

 a
 c

h
ild

 

m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 C
P

P
 b

ri
e
fl
y
 a

t 
b
ir
th

, 
th

e
n
 a

g
a
in

 a
g
e
d
 1

7
 f
o
r 

e
n
ti
re

ly
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

 u
p
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 

S
k
il
ls

:

P
ro

s
p
e
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
ll

N
I 
1
0
3

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

N
e
e
d
s
 a

) 
%

 o
f 
fi
n
a
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 2
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 a

s
 a

 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  
(b

) 

%
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

is
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 

a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 

is
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e
a
r.

a
) 

1
0
0
%

 (
6
6
)

B
) 

1
0
0
%

 (
8
8
)

(a
) 

1
0
0
%

(b
) 

9
5
%

a
) 

1
0
0
%

 

(2
5
)

B
) 

1
0
0
%

 

(2
8
)

a
) 

1
0
0
%

 

(1
8
)

B
) 

1
0
0
%

 

(1
9
)

a
) 

1
0
0
%

 (
2
0
) 

B
) 

1
0
0
%

 

(2
3
)

A
) 

1
0
0
%

 (
8
5
)

B
) 

9
2
%

 (
8
6
/9

3
) 

G
R

E
E

N
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
O

n
 t
ra

c
k

Page 39



L
in

k
s
 t

o
 K

e
y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
/

L
A

A
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 

P
I 
N

o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a
to

r

2
0
0
9
/1

0

o
u

tt
u

rn

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t

0
8
/0

9
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

 1
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

r-
J
u

n
 1

0

Q
tr

 2
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

J
u

l-
S

e
p

 1
0

Q
tr

 3
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 O

c
t-

D
e
c
 1

0

Q
tr

 4
/ 
E

O
Y

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 J

a
n

-

M
a
r 

1
1

C
u

rr
e
n

t

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

R
A

G

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

P
o

s
it

io
n

:

L
o

w
e
s
t

fi
g

u
re

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
  
  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 

S
k
il
ls

:

P
ro

s
p
e
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
ll

N
I 
1
1
4

R
a
te

 o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

D
C

S
F

 D
S

O

0
.0

2

(A
c
a
d
e
m

ic

y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
)

tb
a

-
-

-
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1

n
/a

-
D

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 v

ia
 t
e
rm

ly
 c

e
n
s
u
s
 (

tw
o
 t
e
rm

s
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

).
  

T
a
rg

e
t 
to

 b
e
 s

e
t 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

.

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 

S
k
il
ls

:

P
ro

s
p
e
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
ll

L
A

A
 T

a
rg

e
t

N
I 
1
1
7

1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 

a
re

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(N
E

E
T

) 
P

S
A

 1
4

N
o
v
 6

.6
%

D
e
c
 6

.1
%

J
a
n
 5

.2
%

O
v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

6
.0

%

4
.3

%
5
.8

%
8
.0

%
5
.6

%
N

o
v
 5

.5
%

D
e
c
 4

.5
%

J
a
n
 4

.7
%

O
v
e
ra

ll

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
ra

te
 

fo
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

4
.9

%

n
/a

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 L

O
W

: 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

A
L
 N

E
E

T
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

S
lo

u
g
h
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 i
s
 4

.9
%

 (
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
N

o
v
 5

.5
; 
D

e
c
 4

.5
 a

n
d
 

J
a
n
 4

.7
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 1

.1
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r'
s
 

ra
te

 o
f 
6
.0

%
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
’s

 w
e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
.4

%
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
ra

te
 w

it
h
in

 B
e
rk

s
h
ir
e
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 0

.6
%

 a
b
o
v
e
 

o
u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.3

%
.

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 l
o
w

 

ra
te

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
S

lo
u
g
h
’s

 N
E

E
T

 r
a
te

 w
ill

b
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
.

Page 40



APPENDIX D 

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

REPORT TO: CMT    DATE: 22nd June 2011 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
(For all enquiries)

Russell Bourner (Performance Manager) 01753 875217 

WARD(S): All

PORTFOLIO: All   

PERFORMANCE AND PROJECT REPORTING FOR 2011/12 

Review and development of the Council Wide Balanced Scorecard 

Purpose of report 
The Corporate Balanced Scorecard was introduced in September 2008 and is 
proving unwieldy to manage and maintain, and unhelpful to managers. National 
changes to data requirements and availability and the need to address current local 
priorities mean that the current content and format requires review, and a new 
approach is suggested in this report. 

What is the Balanced Scorecard? 
The Balanced Scorecard is a strategic performance management tool – a structured 
report that can be used by managers to keep track of the execution of activities by 
staff within their control and to monitor the consequences of these activities. An 
effective Scorecard should cover both financial and non-financial measures, to 
provide a rounded view of the council’s performance. All measures should be 
compared to pre-determined target values, within a single concise report. A key 
component is the appropriate escalation of the information that is most relevant to 
those reading it. 

An effective format should enable appropriate escalation of issues of concern 
upwards along the management hierarchy, whilst maintaining appropriately 
delegated responsibilities for performance improvement. Given the complexity of the 
nature of the council’s business activities, our Balanced Scorecard must provide a 
simple enough distillation of pertinent coverage whilst still enabling a direct tracking 
of performance concerns back to their source origin. As a whole entity, the approach 
must still be comprehensive enough to cover all the key performance measures and 
indicators under which the council is assessed and held to account. 

The current version of the SBC Balanced Scorecard is presented in two parts:  
(a) Part One reviews the performance of the health of the organisation and 
(b) Part Two reviews the LAA performance indicators and targets. 

Each part contains an exceptions report that identifies indicators of particular 
underperforming concern, and summarises the mitigating action(s) being taken to 

Page 41



improve performance. Highlights of significant improvement are also provided. The 
report focuses heavily on classic performance indicators, with limited reference to 
staffing, financial and other health measures, runs to approximately 33 pages, and is 
used to report quarterly to both CMT and Members. The national Government has 
ended the ‘National Indicators’ framework and many of the performance measures 
we have used up until now will no longer be available – particularly where data 
collection or processing is conducted outside the council. 

Consultation point: As reviewers of the Balanced Scorecard, CMT’s views are 
sought on what aspects of the current system work well / poorly, which need to be 
retained, and which need to be improved. 

Particularly, your views on adopting the suggested format are sought, as well as 
stipulated lists of measures which you wish to see included at CMT levels. If 
accepted as the way forward, Directorate level scorecard content will be investigated 
individually, and the new scorecard adopted with immediate effect. 

Recommendations / Proposed Actions 

1. The Balanced Scorecard should entail a simple to read short summary 
report of no more than 2-3 pages. This should be sufficiently simple to 
enable a quick review of key measures, and rapid assessment of the key 
performance matters. 

2. The summary cover report should be supported by clear yet informative 
exception reports (perhaps as appendices), enabling a more in-depth 
understanding of the reasons for concern and an appropriate challenge of 
the proposed set of corrective actions. 

3. The summary cover report should cover a range of top-level indications of 
the financial, staffing, partnership, citizen perspective, and classic 
“performance outcomes” health of the organisation.

4. The format chosen for implementation should ideally be the same for 
Service Areas, Directorates and the whole council. This would enable 
shared understanding of the principles and themes and permit a true 
‘golden thread’ to run from top to bottom of the organisation. It would also 
enable corrective actions to be appropriately and effectively assigned 

5. The approach should support and promote the SBC Service Planning 
mechanism and processes, and include reference to progress on Service 
Plan actions and reporting. Service Planning should be reinvigorated. 

6. The escalation of concerns from Service Area level to SMT, and from SMT 
to CMT, should be determined by deviation from pre-agreed thresholds. 
Thresholds for concern should be pre-determined for each measure 
included within the set. To enable sufficient time to address concerns, the 
cycle should enable Service Area addressing of concerns for a maximum 
of one period before escalation to SMT; SMT should then be able to 
address concerns for a maximum of one further period before escalating to 
CMT. These “periods” must be decided in advance, but should be no more 
than one quarter (i.e. 3 months). In many cases, immediate escalation may 
be preferable.

Page 42



7. The precise content – in terms of the defined metrics or measures – will 
need to be clarified in consultation.

8. The timing of reporting must be clearly arrived at; where necessary, 
meetings where the Balanced Scorecard will be considered will be 
convened at an appropriate frequency to enable sensible progress updates 
to be available. Data availability should direct discussion time. 

Figure 1: Suggested Linkages of Score Cards 

CMT

BALANCED

SCORECARD

ECS

BALANCED

SCORECARD

Resources and 

Regeneration

BALANCED

SCORECARD

CWB

BALANCED

SCORECARD

Transactional 

Services

BALANCED

SCORECARD

Assistant 

Directorship 

Service area 1

BALANCED

SCORECARD

Assistant 

Directorship 

Service area 2

BALANCED

SCORECARD

Scorecards should assemble upwards to enable comprehensive coverage of 
responsibility areas at more senior management levels, whilst still permitting 
backwards tracking to determine the point(s) of origin of any concerns.

Pages 4-6 details a proposed CMT level Scorecard for 2011-12. The Scorecard 
comprises sections which detail: 

 Key Finance Measures 

 Key People Measures 

 Key Volume Measures 

 Key Quality Measures 

 Key external inspection results 

 and finally: Key Outcome Measures.

Page 43



Performance scorecard: Council-wide 
June 2011 

Community 
Cohesion

Health and 
Wellbeing

Community Safety Environment Economy and Skills

Celebrating 
diversity, enabling 
inclusion

Adding years to life 
and life to years

Being safe, feeling 
safe

A cleaner, greener 
place to live, work 
and play

Prosperity for all

This report provides an aggregated view of balanced performance across the whole of Slough Borough Council. 
Similar reports will be available for each Directorate and then for the discrete areas headed by separate 
Assistant Directors. In this manner, a holistic view will be supported by the ability to ‘Drill down’ into areas of 
concern and target remedial activities in the most appropriate and efficient manner. 

Key Finance Measures (How much did we spend?) 
Key points: 

 Key Finance Measures would be reported in this table, prefaced with statements to highlight particular 
issues.

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key Finance Measures

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Annual 

budget 

2011-12             Capital spend % 
against profile (2010-11)              

2011-12             Value of debt (2010-11)              2011-12             Percentage of bad 
debt (2010-11)              
Controls checklist % 
completed 

             
Internal audit 
recommendations 
implemented 

             

2011-12             Forecast over / 
underspend (2010-11)              
Key People Measures (Who did it?) 
 Key points: 

 Most HR statistics are prepared on a quarterly basis so are not yet available at this stage. We intend to 
move to a monthly report format wherever this would provide net benefit for the business. 

 Recent restructuring is still impacting on the ability to accurately report against expected appraisal 
completion. Work is under way to record all changes to staffing to enable this measure to be determined.

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key People Measures

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Annual 

target

2011-12 Pending          No. staff in 
establishment 
Headcount & (FTE) 

(2010-11)            1671 (1347.9) 2011-12 Pending          Staff turnover (%) (2010-11)              2011-12 Pending          Average staff sickness 
days per FTE (2010-11)              2011-12             % staff with an 
appraisal (2010-11)              
H&S incident rate per 2011-12             

Page 44



Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key People Measures

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Annual 

target

100 FTE (2010-11)              
2011-12 Pending          

% staff with a declared 
disability (2010-11)            7.1%  2011-12            % staff who are BAME (2010-11)            43.6% 2011-12 Pending           % staff (female) (2010-11)            67.6%2011-12             % of staff stating that 
SBC is a good 
employer 

(2010-11)              

Key Volume Measures (How much did we do?) 
Key points: 

 This section would consider key measures of throughput and activity – which impact on resources and 
capacity to deliver. For CMT level this would restrict to those volume measures that are worth 
consideration by the business as a whole. Highlight statements would identify key concerns and would 
state the remedial actions already underway. 

 Large increase in number of looked after children occurred in May. 

 Numbers with child protection plans also continues to grow. 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key Volume Measures

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Target 

2011-12             No. of FoI requests 
received (2010-11)             2011-12 166 181           -No. of looked after 
children (2010-11) 179 176 180 176 170 168 169 172 168 170 165 168 - 2011-12 144 156           No. with child 
protection plans (2010-11) 111 108 105 77 80 85 87 102 115 132 140 142  2011-12             No. of adults supported 
in residential care (2010-11)              2011-12             No. of council tenants (2010-11)              2011-12             Tonnes household 
waste collected (2010-11)              2011-12             No. calls / visits to 
MyCouncil (2010-11)              2011-12             No. of Housing Benefit 
claimants (2010-11)              
Key Quality Measures (How well did we do it?) 

Key points: 

 This section would cover selected ‘quality’ measures which provide a picture of how well we are 
delivering. Suggested components would include achievement against various service standards e.g. 
time scales, waiting times etc. 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key Quality Measures

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Target 

2011-12 100% (5) 100% (9) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%NI 105: special 
Educational Needs 
statements issued 
within 26 weeks 

(2010-11)             - 
2011-12             NI 59: % of initial 

assessments
completed in time 

(2010-11) 75.5 76.3 76.5 77.0 76.5 75.9 75.0 73.9 73.3 73.3 72.1 69.8 >80 
Average waiting time at 2011-12             

Page 45



Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key Quality Measures

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Target 

MyCouncil (2010-11)              2011-12             Numbers of complaints 
received (2010-11)              2011-12             No. Appeals against 
planning decisions (2010-11)              2011-12             LAC reviews held to 
timescales (2010-11)              2011-12             Benefit claims 
processing time (2010-11)              2011-12             Time from assessment 
to service provision 
(ASC)

(2010-11)              

Key external Inspection results: 

 This section would reflect the overall judgements made by external inspectors and assessors. 

Inspectorate Section covered Date Results 
Ofsted Chalvey Children’s Centre May 

2011
Overall effectiveness: Good. 
Capacity for improvement: Good. 

Ofsted Children’s safeguarding & LAC 
services 

April
2011

Safeguarding: Inadequate 
LAC services: Adequate 

HMI Probation Youth Offending Team (‘YOT’) Feb 
2011

Safeguarding: 62% Moderate improvement required. 
Risk of harm: 54% Substantial improvement required. 
Likelihood of reoffending: 61% Moderate improvement 
required. 

Ofsted Lifelong Learning Nov 
2010

Overall effectiveness: Good. 
Capacity to improve: Good. 

Audit
Commission

Benefits service Nov 
2009

‘Poor’ service with ‘Promising’ prospects: Zero star 

Key Outcome Measures (Is anyone better off as a result?) 
Key points: 

 The overall outcomes that we seek to achieve for those who live in, work in, learn in or visit Slough are 
stated in the Sustainable Community Strategy and summarised as the five Priority Outcomes that 
headline this report. Most of the truly significant outcome measures are available perhaps once a year, 
but some could be reported on more regularly. All agreed ‘outcome’ measures will be reported here as 
the latest positions become available. The Government is currently reviewing the continuing availability 
of many indicator measures that previously formed the basis of our LAA, and several of these are no 
longer collected or processed. This section would need to be shaped and informed by the revision of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy, and would reflect the end results we desire for our total population (or 
for specified sub-groups thereof).

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key Outcome 
Measures

A
p

r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Target 

2011-12 0.12            -NI 15 most 
serious crime 
rate

(2010-11) 0.10            - 
2011-12 0.56            NI 20 Assault 

with less 
serious injury 

(2010-11) 0.69             
2011-12 2.20            Serious

acquisitive 
crime rate 

(2010-11) 2.97             
2011-12             School 

achievement 
measures 

(2010-11)              
2011-12             Employment 

rates (2010-11)              2011-12             Mortality rates (2010-11)              

Page 46



Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Key Outcome 
Measures

A
p

r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b
 

M
a
r Target 

2011-12             
Childhood 
obesity (2010-11)              2011-12             % of service 
users on self-
directed
support 

(2010-11)              

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:                Overview & Scrutiny Committee DATE: 12th July, 2011 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Roger Parkin, Strategic Director of Customer & Transactional 
    Services (017553) 875207   
     
 

PART I  
 FOR COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY  

 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 This report highlights the progress to date in implementing and developing the 
Climate Change Action Plan.  
 

2 Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 
 

2.1 The Committee is requested to note and comment on the following planned actions: 
 

a)   The development of a Climate Change Action Plan; 
 

3 Community Strategy Priorities  
 
3.1 Slough Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) sets out the ambitions and 

aspirations for Slough. It recognises that the Council, in partnership with Slough 
Forward, has a key role to play in leading and enabling a rapid improvement in the 
energy efficiency and carbon emissions from the borough’s transport, homes and 
economy. It also commits the Partnership to lead the city’s adaptation to the impacts 
of climate change. 

 
3.2 This Strategy sets out the strategic framework in which the Council and Slough 

Forward will tackle the Council’s corporate priority of climate change. It directly 
contributes to the delivery of the SCS priority ‘A Cleaner, Greener place to live, 
Work and Play’ by: 
 
• Improving public spaces 
• Creating a strong culture of recycling: by recycling 60% of waste by 2028 
• Improving energy efficiency:  by reducing CO2 emissions by 20% by  2028 
• Promoting sustainable public transport: all public transport and Council’s vehicles 

to run on cleaner fuel by 2028 
 

3.3 This report also takes into account the following additional policies and strategies of 
the Council: 
 
Strategic Plan 
 
• Reduce the impact of climate change on the Borough 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 49



 

 
Carbon Management Plan 2009 – 2014 
 
• To reduce the amount of energy used and CO2 emissions produced across the 

Councils own estate (including schools and leisure centres) by 40%, or 12,616 
tonnes of CO2, off a 2008/09 baseline of 31,540 tonnes of CO2, by April 2014. 

 
4. Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  
 
There is currently no specific budget for climate change activity. Activities under this 
Strategy will be built into the existing business planning of the Directorates 
concerned and where possible be delivered from existing resources. This report 
does not therefore ask for additional funding. However the Strategy will require 
acceptance of potential spend to save activity. Should funding be required, separate 
capital bids would be submitted. In addition, external funding will be sought 
wherever possible. Working in partnership through the Partnership has the potential 
to maximise future funding opportunities for the Council.  
 
(b) Risk Management  
 
There is a risk implication in not addressing climate change issues. Impacts of 
climate change can affect many of the services that the Council provides. In order 
for the Council to continue to provide services in the borough we have to take steps 
to reduce our contribution to climate change.  
 
There is also a risk that without a Strategy the Council will not be able to future 
proof its delivery of essential services and functions and protect residents from the 
threat of climate change.  There is also the risk that with a Strategy the Council will 
fail to meet its Nottingham Declaration commitments or local and national carbon 
reduction targets. These risks are being mitigated by: 
 

o Effective management of the climate change and carbon management work 
programmes and projects with adherence to the Council’s risk management 
process; 

o We will increase our ability to deliver the scale of change by developing 
partnerships - and the Strategy makes specific proposals for this, 

o consulting widely on the Action Plan to ensure that it represents the best 
possible plan; and  

o working with Slough Forward and its’ Climate Change PDG to develop the 
Strategy further with a strong evidence base. 

 
(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications   
 
There are no Human Rights Act Implications.  
 
The Climate Change Act 2008 is referred to in this report. Among other things (e.g. 
certain amendments to waste management law) it establishes a framework with 
legal powers designed to enable the United Kingdom to manage and respond to 
climate change. As a body with functions of a public nature Slough Borough Council 
is a “Reporting Authority” within the meaning of the Climate Change Act. This 
means that the Council (either alone or jointly with other reporting authorities) can 

Page 50



 

expect to be directed by the Secretary of State to report how it is assessing and 
acting on risks and opportunities from a changing climate.  

 
As a signatory of the Nottingham Declaration, the Council agreed to prepare a draft 
Strategy and Action Plan which will address our commitments to tackling climate 
change and adapting to its impacts.  
 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment  (EIA)  
 
Major projects identified in the Strategy and its supporting Action Plan have been or 
will be subject to Equalities Impacts Assessments as part of their development, led 
by the appropriate project/programme manager.  
 
(e) Workforce  
 
None. 
 

5.  Supporting Information 
 
5.1  Background 
 
5.1.1 Climate change is defined as long term change in climate. Research shows that this 

change is increasing at a rate faster that previously recorded and this is causing the 
earths temperature to increase, rising sea levels; and extreme weather conditions. 
Once of the chief cases of climate change is the amount of carbon dioxide (CO2) 
produced by humans. The October 2006, the Stern Review Report looked into the 
economics of climate change and concluded that the cost of doing nothing would far 
outweigh the cost of taking action now. It estimated that inaction could account for a 
20 per cent loss in global GDP, but that by taking action now the worst impacts 
could be avoided and limited to costs of 1 per cent. 

 
5.1.2 The Nottingham Declaration acknowledged that climate change will have far 

reaching effects on the UK; recognises the benefits of combating climate change 
and accepts that local authorities have a central role to play in leading society’s 
response to the challenge of climate change. 

 
5.1.3 Signatories to the Declaration are committed to contributing to the UK’s Climate 

Change Programme, to participate in local and regional networks for support; to 
develop plans within 2 years of signing that address the causes and impacts of 
climate change, to declare, via plans and strategies, their commitment to achieve a 
significant reduction in greenhouse gas emissions, to assess the risks associated 
with climate change and to monitor progress of plans against actions and publish 
the results. 

 
5.1.4 Slough Borough Council signed the Nottingham Declaration in August 2009 and has 

produced a Climate Change Strategy that indicates the Council’s and Slough 
Forward’s commitment towards playing their part in reducing climate change and 
adapting to its impacts.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

5.2 Strategic Links 
  
5.2.1 The Government sees local authorities playing an important role in dealing with 

climate change, as it stated in the Local Government White paper 2006.  Local 
authorities are uniquely placed to provide vision and leadership and through our 
powers and services to support action by businesses, individuals and communities. 

 
5.2.2 In 2006 the UK became the first country to adopt a Climate Change Act. Under the 

Act, the UK is legally obliged to reduce carbon emissions by 80% by 2050 from a 
1990 baseline and the first carbon budgets have committed the UK to reduce 
emissions by 34% by 2022.  

 
5.2.3 The Committee on Climate Change estimates that the private and public sectors 

could save almost £900 million and 9 million tonnes of CO2 a year through cost 
effective measures.  Coupled with the worsening UK economy and the need to cut 
costs, improving energy efficiency present a major opportunity for the Council to 
invest, thereby supporting both its economic and environmental agendas. 

 
5.3 Climate Change Strategy Document  
 
5.3.1 In developing our Climate Change Strategy, Slough Borough Council consulted with 

other Councils to indentify the activities they were undertaking and considered 
those that would be appropriate to Slough and its strategic partnership. Various 
local businesses and environmental organisations were also consulted, as well as 
all the internal services, with particular emphasis on flooding, waste, recycling, 
planning, transport and facilities management. 

 
5.3.2 A Climate Change Strategy Summary document was published for consultation to 

the local residents in the autumn of 2010. Comments and feedback were received 
from consultees. The responses were varied with a number of positive elements, 
some negative comments and a large number of other ideas for consideration. A 
thorough analysis of the comments was carried out and a number of items were 
identified as feasible for immediate inclusion. Several have been identified as ‘for 
information’ and a large number are being subjected to a more in-depth review for 
possible inclusion in future developments of the Strategy and its forthcoming 
supporting Action Plan.  

 
5.3.3 The Climate Change Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 14th March 2011 and 

published 28th March 2011. It sets out the strategic direction required to meet 
national and local targets for reducing carbon emissions internally, across the wider 
community, and how we can adapt to severe weather events and future climatic 
change.  

 
5.3.4  As a signatory of the Nottingham Declaration, the Council committed to producing a 

Climate Change Strategy, developing a corresponding Action Plan and monitoring 
and reporting progress on the plan. Developing and implementing a Climate 
Change Strategy for Slough aims to reduce the long terms costs likely to accrue 
and provides a template and processes for key partners, businesses and partners 
to follow. The development of a supporting Action Plan will also provide the Council 
with the means to indentify monitor and report on the work required and undertaken 
across the partnership to deliver the improvements needed to tackle climate 
change. 

  
 

Page 52



 

5.4 Action Plan Development  
 

5.4.1 The Action Plan will outline the ways in which Slough Forward and the Council will 
try to limit the effects of climate change by lowering carbon dioxide emissions 
across the Borough and across their own operations.  It will outline how the Council 
and the Partnership will work with members and the community to lower their 
emissions and to start preparing for the impacts of climate change. This Action Plan 
will address both mitigation and adaptation. 

 
5.4.2 The Climate Change Partnership Delivery Group will be looking at the following 

areas to identify were improvements to climate change can be made and influenced 
at a local level. These will include: 

 

• Various feasibility studies 

• Addressing transport and air quality issues 

• Impact of Small Medium Enterprises on our local climate  

• LoCUS Project (Low Carbon Understanding for Small Businesses) 

• Liaising with Berkshire Climate Board   

• Working with voluntary groups 

• Working with our own Carbon Management Board and Assets Management 
Team 

 

5.4.3 Objectives: 
 

• Work with central government, partners and the community to contribute, at a 
local level, to the delivery of the UK climate change programme 

• Work with key providers, including the health community, emergency services, 
businesses and development organisations, to assess the potential effects of 
climate change on our communities and to identify ways in which we can adapt 

• Assess the Partnerships and the Council’s carbon footprint, evaluate measures 
to reduce it and achieve significant reductions of emissions across the 
Partnership, the borough and from all of Slough Borough Council’s operations 

• Encourage all sectors in the local community to reduce their own  carbon 
footprints and to make public their commitment  to action 

 
5.4.4 Performance monitoring 
 
 Progress on the delivery of this Plan will be reported through Slough Forward 

Partnership, LSP Climate Change PDG, Carbon Management Board and Overview 
& Scrutiny. Thereafter it will form part of the Council’s performance management 
framework. Where practical targets will be SMART (Specific, Measurable, 
Achievable, Relevant, Timely). 

 
5.4.5 Updating the Action Plan 
 
 This Action Plan will be updated on an ongoing basis. 
 
6. Comments of other Committees 
 
 None. 
 
 
 

 

Page 53



 

7. Conclusion 
 
 Slough Borough Council is committed, via the Nottingham Declaration, to produce 

Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan by August 2011. The Climate Change 
Strategy has been published and the Action Plan is currently under development 
with our strategic partners.  

 
8. Background Papers 

 
 None. 

Page 54



 

O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 

 

A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te
m
s
 

F
in
a
l 
d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

(P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l)
 

A
g
e
n
d
a
 D
e
s
p
a
tc
h
 

(P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 
*)
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

(J
E
) 

•
 
M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
:-
 A
 p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
in
g
 a
n
y
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t,
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 

c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 
(J
E
) 

•
 
C
e
n
s
u
s
 2
0
1
1
- 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 b
y
 O
N
S
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
(N
M
) 

•
 
T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
-u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 (
P
H
) 

 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 3
1
s
t  

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
2
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 2

n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 1
3
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

(J
E
) 

•
 
C
C
T
V
- 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 

•
 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
P
o
lic
in
g
 i
n
 S
lo
u
g
h
 

•
 
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 2
8
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 3
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 1
1
th
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

(J
E
) 

•
 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
(J
H
) 

•
 
L
o
c
a
lis
m
 B
ill
 a
n
d
 B
ig
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 

 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 2

n
d
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 4

th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 1
5
th
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
  

•
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
t 
R
e
g
is
te
r 

•
 
In
d
ic
e
s
 o
f 
D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S
lo
u
g
h
 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 2
3
rd
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 2
5
th
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 6

th
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 55



 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

•
 
 H
e
a
rt
 o
f 
S
lo
u
g
h
 

•
 
E
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
o
w
n
tu
rn
 o
n
 S
lo
u
g
h
 

 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 4

th
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 6

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
2
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 1
7
th
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

•
 
 P
o
s
t-
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
rt
 @
 t
h
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 (
G
 R
a
lp
h
s
/R
 K
ir
k
h
a
m
) 
 

 

F
ri
d
a
y
 2
0
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
2
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 2
4
th
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2

n
d
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

 

 
W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 2
2
n
d
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 2
4
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
2
 

 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 6

th
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
2
 

 

 
W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 2
8
th
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 3
0
th
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
2
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 1
0
th
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
2
 

 

U
n
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 i
te
m
s
:–
 

 

•
 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
n
 M
y
C
o
u
n
c
il 
(R
P
) 

 

 
 

 

   

Page 56



M
E
M
B
E
R
S
’ 
A
T
T
E
N
D
A
N
C
E
 R
E
C
O
R
D
 

 

O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

 

0
7
/0
6
 

1
2
/0
7
 

1
3
/0
9
 

1
1
/1
0
 

1
5
/1
1
 

0
6
/1
2
 

1
7
/0
1
 

0
2
/0
2
 

0
6
/0
3
 

1
0
/0
4
 

B
a
s
h
a
ra
t 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
a
v
is
 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

H
a
in
e
s
 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
a
n
n
 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
in
a
s
 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
u
n
a
w
a
r 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
’C
o
n
n
o
r 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
le
n
ty
 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
m
it
h
 

 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 P
  
 =
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
w
h
o
le
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 
 

P
* 
 =
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

A
p
 =
 A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

 
 

A
b
 =
 A
b
s
e
n
t,
 n
o
 a
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 7th June, 2011
	3 Minutes of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Panel held on 9th June 2011
	5 Performance and Project Reporting for 2010/11- end of year out-turns
	O and S Performance App B
	O and S Performance App C
	O and S Performance App D

	7 Climate Change Strategy
	10 Forward Work Programme
	11 Attendance Record

